
City Council Regular Meeting 4-15-24 April 15, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

City Council Regular Meeting 4-15-24 
April 15, 2024 6:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 713 080 5898 Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Aldermen Present 

4. Correction or Approval of Minutes 

a. April 1st, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. April 10th, 2024 Street and Alley Committee Meeting Minutes 

5. Visitors 

a. Other Visitors: 

6. Public Hearing 

a. Zoning Code Update-Zoning Board Public Hearing April 17th, City Council Public Hearing May 6th 

7. Mayor Norby 

a. Appoint Heather Cotter to Library Board 

8. Committee Meeting Work 

a. Street and Alley Committee Meeting-Sidney Millwork Drainage Issues 

9. Alderman Requests and Committee Reports 

Parks and Recreation – Chairman DiFonzo – Christensen, Stevenson | Water and Sewer – Chairman 
Koffler – Godfrey, Christensen 

1



City Council Regular Meeting 4-15-24 April 15, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

Street and Alley – Chairman Christensen– DiFonzo, Rasmussen | Sanitation – Chairman Rasmussen 
– Koffler, Stevenson 

City Buildings & Street Lighting – Chairman Stevenson– Koffler, Godfrey | Police and Fire – 
Chairman Godfrey, DiFonzo, Rasmussen 

Budget and Finance – Chairman Christensen – DiFonzo, Koffler 

10. Unfinished Business 

a. Drug Task Force MOU (Tabled at 4-1-24 Council Meeting) 

11. New Business 

a. TBID Grant to Svarre Pool and Day Passes for Hotels 

b. Aguilar Variance Request 

12. City Planner 

13. City Attorney 

14. Chief of Police 

15. Public Works Director 

a. Anderson Subdivision Vendor Invoice for $6,025.03 

b. Phase III Water Project Draw #6C for $62,067.35 

c. Phase III Water Project Change Order #3 for -$264,958.69 (balancing) 

16. Fire Marshal/Building Inspector 

a. March 2024 Fire Run Report 

17. City Clerk/Treasurer 

a. SCHR Pay Application #04 for $266,664.68 

b. SCHR RFP #17-Millwork Reconciliation for $5,891.00 and RFP #20 Rubber Base for $489.50 

c. SCHR Change Order 3 for $47,315.00 (RFP's 15, 16, 18 & 19) 

d. SCHR Change Order 4 for $6,380.50 (RFP's 17 & 20) 

e. March 22024 Treasurer's Report 

f. March 22024 JV Report 

2



City Council Regular Meeting 4-15-24 April 15, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

g. March 2024 Water/Sewer Bank Transfer of $115,518.94 

18. Consent Agenda 

a. Claims to be approved: $139,035.74 

b. Building Permits to be approved: 2024-60 to 2024-62 

19. Adjournment 

a. Executive Session-discuss open litigation for TBID 

b. Adjournment 

3



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 1 of 9 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 
April 01, 2024 6:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 713 080 5898 Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Norby called the regular meeting of the Sidney City Council to order at 6:30pm. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was stated by all present. 

3. Aldermen Present 

Christensen, Godfrey, Koffler, DiFonzo and Rasmussen (via phone).  Absent: Stevenson 

4. Correction or Approval of Minutes 

a. March 18th, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderman DiFonzo. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. March 20th, 2024 Park and Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderwoman Godfrey. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

4

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 2 of 9 

5. Visitors 

a. Sportsman Club-Annual Car Show in Moose Park 

Larry Christensen came before the City Council to ask for approval to have the Sportsman Club 
annual Car Show in Moose Park on July 13th.  He stated he checked with the baseball schedule 
and there is nothing scheduled on that day. 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Ryan Payne-Creating a 501(c)3 for Svarre Pool Fundraising 

Mr. Payne came before the City Council to ask for permission to start a 501(C)3 to fundraise for 
the Svarre Pool.  Current fundraising would include lane lines, shade covers, chairs and other 
needs for the pool and its programming.  He stated he would set up the non-profit, they have a 
board and would provide the funding when it is available to the City for use at the pool.   

Alderman DiFonzo asked if they would get approval before any changes to the pool would be and 
Mr. Payne stated they would but current fundraising goals are already approved.  Alderwoman 
Godfrey asked if they have to set up the non-profit or if the fundraised money could go through 
the City.  Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the City does have the pool CIP and donations have 
been made to the City for specific items for the pool that the City then purchased.  Mr. Franklin 
asked if there is the tax benefit to donors if they donate to the City as there is with donating to the 
non-profit and Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated there is not. 

Motion was made to approve the setting up a 501C3 to fundraise for the Svarre Pool. 
 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

c. Pickleball Court Update/Status 

Randy Iverson, Brad Franklin, Kim Byer, Roger Byer, DeeAnn Johnson, Rita Steinbeisser, Rhonda 
Peterson, Amy Rassier, Kasey Deschaine, Josh Deschaine. 

Mr. Iverson stated they came before the City Council to get an update on the proposed changes to 
the Tennis Court to add pickleball courts.  They were wondering where the City is in the process, if 
grants are available and what can they do to help. 

5

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 3 of 9 

PWD Hintz stated they have the layout and plan, the only thing standing in the way is funds.  He 
stated architects and engineers are estimating almost a $1,000,000 project to completely re-do 
the tennis court area.  He stated Parks Superintendent Ridl does have a grant lined up for the 
sandpit area by the pool that could include 2 pickleball courts along with a fitness court.  He stated 
the only grant funds for the tennis court would be through Fish Wildlife and Parks and they cannot 
apply until 2025, with construction being in 2026.   

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the Tennis Court CIP has approximately $70,000 and asked if 
patch sealing and painting could be done to get through until the complete rehab.  PWD Hintz 
stated yes they are looking at doing some repairs to get the courts available sooner. 

Mr. Iverson stated he talked to the company that redid the Tennis Courts last time and he 
informed him they are in such bad shape there is no use in patching and no point in putting any 
money into them unless it is the complete rehab.  He stated they told him it would cost 
approximately $600,000 to do the base, not including fencing, netting or any other improvements 
and they need to get a good cost estimate to be able to fundraise.  Mr. Franklin stated there is 
way more people in the community playing pickleball all over town, with more enthusiasm for the 
sport, including in the schools.  He just asked to not tear out the current until they can be replaced 
as they are able to play on them currently.   

Alderman DiFonzo asked if the pickleball players have organized committee and Mr. Iverson 
stated not yet but they can.  Alderman DiFonzo stated it will be easier for the City to work closely 
with a committee and the City does have plans to continue to reserve money for that project as 
they are aware of the dire need of improvements for those courts.   

d. Other Visitors: 

James Falcon (Sidney Herald), Jacky Gonzales (SPS), phone number 406-798-3314 (via zoom), 
Becky Garza 

6. Public Hearing 

Nothing. 

7. Mayor Norby 

a. Week of the Young Child Proclamation 

Mayor Norby read the Week of the Young Child Proclamation out loud. 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Godfrey, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Update: 

6

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 4 of 9 

Mayor Norby stated they are working on moving in to the office space and are looking forward to 
being in the new space. 

8. Committee Meeting Work 

a. Park and Recreation Committee: Moose Park 

Alderman DiFonzo stated the Park and Recreation Committee met and discussed changing the 
locks and how to prevent vandalism and protect the investments of Richland County Baseball and 
now the High School Baseball program.  He stated they agreed to not lock down the park but they 
will be looking into a security system.  Pertaining to the locks they discussed a keypad entry and 
PWD Hintz stated after City Staff discussed they are not sure the keypad entry is the best idea, 
unless the codes are changed routinely.  He stated new locks can be installed.  Alderman DiFonzo 
stated they could also get more keys made and PWD Hintz stated not with the key system we have 
unless they go through a locksmith. 

Motion was made to approve the changing of the locks on the building doors in Moose Park, 
working with PWD Hintz. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 

Alderman DiFonzo stated fencing the infield at Moose Park in the off season was discussed and 
they will be working with Parks Superintendent Ridl to ensure no interference with the irrigation 
system.  Alderwoman Rasmussen asked if a building permit would be required and Alderman 
DiFonzo stated it would just be a temporary fence and it is in the City Park.  Alderman Koffler 
stated we could waive the permit fees.  Alderman DiFonzo stated they would relay to them they 
need to reach out the FM/BI Rasmussen. 

b. Park and Recreation Committee: Lyndale Park 

Alderman DiFonzo stated the Park and Recreation Committee met and discussed improvements 
that are needed at Lyndale Park including the benches in the dug-outs and fences.  He stated Mr. 
Rosaaen agreed to donate his time to assist with these improvements with the City purchasing the 
materials. 

PWD Hintz stated the City has aluminum planking they will be used to make new benches with the 
assistance of Mr. Rosaaen.  They are continuing to look into the fence issue.   

c. Park and Recreation Committee: Svarre Pool Deck Furniture and Lap Swimming 

Alderman DiFonzo stated the Park and Recreation Committee met and discussed the deck 
furniture and lap swimming at Svarre Pool.  He stated there are a number of pool users that like to 
sit on deck and seating would be advantageous to have.  He stated Pool Manager Garsjo will be 
looking into the cost of the deck chairs and umbrellas and possibly fundraise for them. 

7

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 5 of 9 

He stated pertaining to lap swimming they discussed adding designated lap swimming to adult 
swimming.  He stated Pool Manager Garsjo was very against adding lap swimming and she feared 
it would interfere with other adult swim activities but after discussing the committee 
recommended doing one lane of lap swimming for the 2024 season, tracking the use, and the lap 
swimming ropes and storage being fundraised for.  he further stated the lap swimmers will have 
to install the ropes and take them out during the one hour time slot. 

Motion was amde to approve adding one lane of lap swimming to the adult swim. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

9. Alderman Requests and Committee Reports 

Parks and Recreation – Chairman DiFonzo – Christensen, Stevenson | Water and Sewer – Chairman 
Koffler – Godfrey, Christensen 

Street and Alley – Chairman Christensen– DiFonzo, Rasmussen | Sanitation – Chairman Rasmussen 
– Koffler, Stevenson 

City Buildings & Street Lighting – Chairman Stevenson– Koffler, Godfrey | Police and Fire – 
Chairman Godfrey, DiFonzo, Rasmussen 

Budget and Finance – Chairman Christensen – DiFonzo, Koffler 

Nothing. 

10. Unfinished Business 

a. Four-Way Stop Update 

PWD Hintz stated he continued to look into the 4-way stop at White Drug and the overhanging 
light proposed at the previous meeting.  He stated that MDU will not let the City use their existing 
poles to suspend the light, and without using the existing poles it is not feasible to do that 
light.  He stated they can still install the blinking stop signs starting with the north and south 
bound signs.  He stated they will cost approximately $1,800 a piece.  Mayor Norby stated Chief 
Kraft suggested doing only the signs on Main Street and he would not mind seeing all 4 installed 
eventually.  Alderman Koffler stated he was asked why they don't just get taken down and 
Alderman DiFonzo stated the 4-way stop was installed because there was no designated crossing 
for the school. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated this would come out of the Street Maintenance Fund, not the 
street lighting, since it would be street signs.  Alderman DiFonzo suggested purchasing 2 this year 
and the other 2 the following fiscal year. 

Motion was made to approve purchasing the flashing stop signs, two in the upcoming fiscal year 
and the remaining two the fiscal year after. 

8

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 6 of 9 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

11. New Business 

a. Committee Meetings: Set date and time monthly 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated it has been brought to her attention that for some of the 
busier Committees, it might be easier to have a set meeting date and time each month.  This will 
not only help for the Council to know when they are, but for the public also.  She stated to start 
this process, she will need to know days and times that council members are available to have set 
meetings, from there she can compare and attempt to fit everyone's schedules.  She asked that 
the Council collect this information and get it back to her, if this is what they would like to do. 

b. SCHR-Liquidated Damages for contract time 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated that the City Hall project will not be complete by the original 
contract deadline.  She stated the City Hall side is substantially complete, which is why we are 
actively moving into it, but the old fire hall side, which will become the breakroom and council 
chambers will not be completed for approximately another month.  She stated there are still items 
on the city hall side, such as the front door, that will be completed as the supplies allow.  We all 
feel B&B has been doing a good job and have been communicating their warranted delays to city 
staff and the architects.  With that she asked the council for approval to waive the liquidated 
damages for contact run over. 

Motion was made to not charge B&B Builders liquidated damages for the Sidney City Hall Remodel 
Project. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderwoman Godfrey. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

12. City Planner 

a. Zoning Code Update-Zoning Board Public Hearing April 17th, City Council Public Hearing May 6th 

PWD Hintz stated they met with Planner Sanderson and reviewed the changes to the zoning code 
update and he announced the public hearings for the zoning code updates. 

13. City Attorney 

a. Update: 

9

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 7 of 9 

City Attorney Kalil stated he has drafted the ordinance for the zoning code update and will be 
presenting it at the May 6th, 2024 public hearing.  Alderwoman Godfrey asked if there was any 
movement with TBID and City Attorney Kalil requested  

Alderman DiFonzo asked if there has been progress with the BNSF lease to purchase the building 
and City Attorney Kalil stated he has been able to be in contact with them and he is waiting on 
terms for the lease and then should be good to go. 

14. Chief of Police 

a. Drug Task Force MOU 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the MOU for the drug task force officer needs to be renewed 
for the upcoming fiscal year.  She stated there was no changes from the MOU approved last fiscal 
year.  Alderman DiFonzo requested the original MOU to compare. 

Motion was made to table this until the April 15th City Council meeting. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Update: 

Captain Rosaaen stated they have two officers in field training and one at the academy who 
passed the MPAT, which is was required to stay. 

15. Public Works Director 

a. Update: 

PWD Hintz stated they submitted the SLIPA grants for replacing the restroom facilities at Quilling's 
and Lyndale Park.   

b. Impact Fee Review-Recommendation to no longer assess Street Equipment Impact Fee 

PWD Hintz stated the impact fee review is moving forward and part of that has been the 
discussion of discontinuing the street equipment impact fee.  He stated this does not generate 
enough funds to accomplish the initially desired outcomes of being able to purchase the expensive 
street equipment.  He stated AE2S, the consultant, highly recommended not continuing this 
impact fee. 

Motion was made to approve not continuing the street equipment impact fee. 

In discussion Alderwoman Godfrey asked if this was going to be a determent to not have this fee 
and Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated this is for street equipment that is costly to replace and 
hard to prove an impact to purchase.  PWD Hintz stated for the limited amount is very hard to use. 

10

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 8 of 9 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderwoman Godfrey. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

16. Fire Marshal/Building Inspector 

Nothing. 

17. City Clerk/Treasurer 

a. Healthy Is Wellness BIO 2.0 Screening April 22nd 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the BIO 2.0 screening with Healthy is Wellness will take place 
April 22nd.  She stated this is for employees, elected officials and spouses and will contain HbA1c 
testing, total Cholesterol, HDL, LDL and Triglycerides testing, grip strength testing, body 
composition (muscle mass %, visceral fat, intra- vs.      extra-cellular water to check for edema and 
inflammation and lean mass of      each limb) and results explanation and coaching.  She stated she 
will be sending out a link to sign up for a time to everyone, as each person's testing will take 
approximately 30 minutes they do want appointments made. 

b. SCHR RFP's: 

15-Exterior Lighting $25,057.00 

16-Clean and Seal Brick $10,184.00 

18-Stair Railing $7,012.00 

19-City Hall Signs $5,062.00 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the Sidney City Hall Remodel RFPs 15, 16, 18 and 19.  She 
stated all these RFP's are at our request to expand the project using the excess funds 
available.  She stated there is still a millwork reconciliation RFP that will be at max $10,424 that is 
still outstanding and a small RFP to change the baseboard around the blue cupboards in the front 
office.  She stated with these outstanding RFP's that still leaves approximately $100,000 in excess 
funding that she feels should be left for improvements to the back parking lot and flooding and 
concrete work around City Hall. 

Alderman DiFonzo asked if the gooseneck lighting enough lighting for exterior and Clerk/Treasurer 
Chamberlin stated she believes it will be.  Alderman Koffler asked if the exterior lighting will be on 
a timer and PWD Hintz stated it will be on a photo eye. 

Motion was made to approve RFPs 15, 16, 18 and 19. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

11

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 4-1-2024 April 01, 2024 Page 9 of 9 

c. Update: 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated they will be attending Swim Team sign-ups to sell swim passes 
April 4th and April 9th. 

18. Consent Agenda 

Motion was made to approve the claims and building permits. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderwoman Godfrey. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderwoman Godfrey, 
Alderwoman Christensen 
 

a. Claims to be approved: $97,092.43 

b. Building Permits to be approved: 24-056 and 24-057 

19. Adjournment 

at 7:38 pm. 

12

Item a.



Street and Alley Committee Meeting 4-10-2024 April 10, 2024 Page 1 of 2 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Street and Alley Committee Meeting 4-10-2024 
April 10, 2024 5:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 713 080 5898 Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Alderman Present: Christensen, DiFonzo, Rasmussen 

Other's Present: Mayor Norby, PWD Hintz, Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin and Lee Harris 

1. New Business 

a. Sidney Millwork Drainage 

Mr. Harris stated he wanted to go on record stating the way the roads where installed via the SID 
in JD Industrial Subdivision is causing drainage issues.  He stated the road by the northwest corner 
of his building has nothing holding it up.  He stated the area gets silted in and as the silt builds up 
in the area he has no choice but to clear it because of water getting into the basement of his 
building.  He stated this happens every 3-4 years and he is worried this removing of the silt built 
up will compromise the road base but he has no choice otherwise the drainage water has no 
where to go but to his building. 

PWD Hintz stated he spent time up there with Mr. Harris looking at the issue and he believes the 
way to rectify the situation would be installing a retaining wall, concrete valley gutters and 
possibly underground inlets, none of which he believes would qualify for the FEMA storm water 
grants the City has been pursuing for storm water issues.  He stated the culvert to the east only 
takes a fraction of the drainage, as most of the water goes to the west and south.  Alderwoman 
Christensen stated she went up to the location and can see the built up silt. 

Mr. Harris stated the City did try to rectify the situation by building up that corner but if a large 
deluge comes he is concerned it won't be enough.  Alderman DiFonzo asked if this was an issue 
prior to annexation and Mr. Harris stated it wasn't because the roads where not paved.  He stated 
it has only been since the roads where widened and paved causing more hard surfaces that this 
has been an issue.  PWD Hintz stated the roads where installed under SID 104, which Interstate 
Engineering was the engineer for, and per the plans they just paved over existing roads.   

13

Item b.



Street and Alley Committee Meeting 4-10-2024 April 10, 2024 Page 2 of 2 

Alderman DiFonzo asked if this was a City issue and PWD Hintz stated it could be both a City issue 
and an issue from run-off from the roofs.  Alderman DiFonzo asked if gutters could funnel the 
water to different locations to help and Mr. Harris stated he did this several years ago and it did 
help but the main issue is the run-off on the corner, not from the roofs, that could be 
compromising the road. 

Motion was made to contract with Interstate Engineering to have them look into a solution for the 
problem and provide a project cost estimate. 

In discussion Mr. Harris stated maybe installing grass or something similar on the bank would help, 
but it would be difficult.  He further stated he will have to replace the wall on his building because 
it has rotted, at which time he will make improvements to help prevent the water getting into the 
building, but the problem needs to be fixed first.  Alderman DiFonzo stated he has not been up 
there to look at it but we need an engineer to look at the situation, as the road becoming 
compromised is an issue. 

Motion made by  DiFonzo, Seconded by  Rasmussen. 
Voting Yea:  DiFonzo,  Christensen,  Rasmussen 

Mr. Harris stated he will be working with Mike Kunda to dig the silt out with smaller equipment 
than he has to get the water flowing in the right direction before the rainy season starts, if that is 
ok with the City.  PWD Hintz stated that is on his property and Alderman DiFonzo stated City 
Attorney Kalil should also be made aware of the situation. 

Adjourned at 5:54pm 

14

Item b.



EMDTF Memorandum of Understanding 1  

EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE 

INTER-AGENCY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR FY 2025

Purpose 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish general guidelines for a multi-

agency task force to address drug-related crime. Through the spirit of cooperative efforts and a 

strong commitment to combat drug-related trafficking, manufacturing and violence, the 

EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE is formed. Agencies participating in this 

project recognize that combating drugs is of paramount importance to our communities. Through 

our united efforts, our resources will be better utilized and our investigative efforts will be more 

fruitful on behalf of the communities we serve. The participating agencies are committed to 

cooperative efforts and to full information sharing through their participation in the EASTERN 

MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE. 

Mission Statement 

The mission of the EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE is to provide a collaborative 

federal, state, and local law enforcement effort to identify, target, and address those involved in 

drug trafficking, manufacture, and/or violence. The EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK 

FORCE will utilize sophisticated long-term investigative approaches, including undercover 

surveillance operations, the purchase of evidence and information, and electronic surveillance to 

disrupt and dismantle targeted drug organizations. 

15

Item a.



EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE 

INTER-AGENCY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FISCAL YEAR 2025

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into this 10th day of 
January 2024 and covers fiscal year 2025. Specifically defined as the period between July 1, 
2024 and June 30, 2025 between the Baker Police Department, the City of Baker; Carter County 
Sheriff’s Office, Carter County; Colstrip Police Department, City of Colstrip; Custer County 

Sheriff’s Office, Custer County; Dawson County Sheriff’s Office, Dawson County; Fallon 

County Sheriff’s Office, Fallon County; Garfield County Sheriff’s Office, Garfield County; 

Glendive Police Department, the City of Glendive; McCone County Sheriff’s Office, McCone 

County; Miles City Police Department, the City of Miles City; Powder River County Sheriff’s 

Office, Powder River County; Prairie County Sheriff’s Office, Prairie County; Richland County 
Sheriff's Office, Richland County; Rosebud County Sheriff’s Office, Rosebud County; Sheridan 
County Sheriff's Office, Sheridan County; Sidney Police Department, City of Sidney; Treasure 
County Sheriff’s Office, Treasure County; Valley County Sheriff's Office; Wibaux County 
Sheriff’s Office, Wibaux County; and Montana Department of Justice /Division of Criminal 

Investigation (hereinafter DCI). 

WHEREAS there is evidence that trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs 

exists in eastern Montana, and specifically the above-mentioned counties, and that such illegal 

activity has a substantial and detrimental effect on the health and general welfare of the people 

residing in those general areas, the parties hereto agree to the following: 

1. The Eastern Montana Drug Task Force (hereinafter EMDTF or Task Force) will 
perform the activities and duties described below.

A. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in eastern Montana by immobilizing targeted 
violators and trafficking organizations, by leading the cohesive multi-

jurisdictional investigation unit

B. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and 
dangerous drugs through monthly meetings as well as interpersonal 
contact as needed with the appropriate agencies

C. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other 
traditional methods of investigation in order that the EMDTF’s activities 
will result in effective prosecution before the courts of Montana.

D. Provide training opportunities within the EMDTF area to law enforcement 
to recognize, investigate and prevent Drug Endangered Children and to 
promote dangerous drug awareness to law enforcement and the public.

2. To accomplish the objectives of the EMDTF, the DCI will assign one supervisory 
agent and three investigative agents to the EMDTF. The Custer County Sheriff’s 
Office agrees to detail no less than one officer to the EMDTF. The Valley County 
Sheriff’s Office agrees to detail no less than one officer to the EMDTF. The 
Sidney Police Department agrees to detail no less than one officer to the EMDTF. 
The US Border Patrol will assign two Agents to provide support to the EMDTF 
and its mission of investigating drug-related crimes in Eastern Montana and 
locations with direct nexus to the international border pursuant to the 
Memorandum of Understanding.

2
16

Item a.

CJB188
Highlight

CJB188
Highlight

CJB188
Highlight

cjb201
Highlight



between US Border Patrol Havre Sector and EMDTF. The administrative support 

position will be a DCI employee. During this period of assignment, the EMDTF 

personnel will be under the direct supervision and control of the DCI supervisor 

assigned to the EMDTF. Officers assigned to the EMDTF must first be approved 

by the EMDTF Executive Board. 

3. The officers assigned to the EMDTF shall adhere to DCI policies and procedures.

Failure to adhere to policies and procedures shall be grounds for dismissal from the

EMDTF.

4. The EMDTF has two US Border Patrol Agents that shall be deputized in each of

the participating county jurisdictions. While working with the EMDTF these two

Border Patrol Agents will work and operate under all DCI policies and procedures.

Should any of the DCI policies directly conflict with US Border Patrol policies,

Border Patrol Agents will adhere to their US Border Patrol policy.

5. Law enforcement officers assigned to the EMDTF by participating agencies

(except state and federal agents) shall be deputized as DCI Agents. Once

designated as state agents, EMDTF Agents shall adhere to the state investigative

protocol procedure.

6. Any duly sworn peace officer, while assigned to duty with the EMDTF, as herein

provided and working at the direction of the Task Force Supervisor, shall have the

same powers, duties, privileges, responsibilities, and immunities throughout the

jurisdiction of the EMDTF, as are conferred upon him/her as a Peace Officer in his/

her respective jurisdiction. For the purpose of indemnification, each participating

agency of the EMDTF shall be responsible for the acts of its participating

officer(s). Each local government jurisdiction participating in any way in this
agreement must have a valid professional liability insurance policy in effect
throughout the term of this agreement. Such professional liability insurance must
have policy limits of not less than the limitations of liability for tort damage
prescribed in § 2-108 (1), MCA. Each local government jurisdiction participating in
any way in this agreement must defend and indemnify its own officers and agents
from any claim for damages brought against an officer or agent for EMDTF
activities.

7. At the request of any Executive Board member, the Task Force Supervisor may

authorize mutual aid assistance for other criminal matters within the jurisdiction of

the Task Force, with the concurrence of the Chairman or his designee and

following the established protocol for DCI.

8. During the period of assignment to the EMDTF, each participating agency will

remain responsible for establishing the salary and benefits, including overtime, of

their respective officers assigned to the EMDTF, and for making all payments due

to them.

9. Each participating agency shall be responsible for the full payment of its personnel

assigned to the Task Force, and such salary shall be deemed to be full salary and

due and payable to such assigned personnel while on duty with the

3

17

Item a.

cjb201
Highlight

cjb201
Cross-Out



4 

Task Force. The city and/or county agencies participating in the Federal Grant 

shall be reimbursed by the Grant account. The Grant Account consists of funding 

awarded by the Montana Board of Crime Control, and matching funds (including 

forfeiture funds and local agency matching funds) and shall be administered by 

DCI. At the beginning of each month for the duration of the grant, DCI agrees to

remit to those agencies providing personnel, reimbursement for the previous

month's salaries and fringe benefits for the field agents assigned to the Task

Force. DCI agrees to pay overtime to assigned field agents above 8 hours per
month. The supervisor shall be responsible for duty assignment of field agents, as

well as ensuring that field agents conform to ordinances, regulations, and

directives as supplied by those member agencies concerning overtime

compensation.

10. Any agency desiring to terminate its participation in this Memorandum of

Understanding shall indicate such intent in writing to the EMDTF Executive

Board. Termination of participation in this Memorandum of Understanding by

such agency shall be deemed to take effect not less than thirty (30) days after

receipt of the written communication of the intent by the Executive Board.

11. Each agency supplying field agents to the EMDTF will ensure that said officers

will meet the minimum requirements for the position of Peace Officer as set forth

in the Montana Codes Annotated. This will include, but will not be limited to: at

least twenty-one (21) years of age, P.O.S.T. certified by the State of Montana, and

have prior investigative experience.

12. In no event will the participating agency charge any indirect cost rate to the

Department of Justice for the administration or implementation of this

Memorandum of Understanding.

13. An Executive Board shall be established as the participating agencies that provide

monetary contributions to the matching funds to operate the EMDTF. DCI is a

member of the Executive Board because DCI provides the salaries of the

Supervisor, and Administrative Assistant for EMDTF. Agencies that are unable to

provide monetary support to the continued operation of the EMDTF, yet still wish

to include their jurisdictions in the EMDTF region, will be considered Associate

members and not have any voting rights at the Executive Board meetings. Its

voting members shall be as follows: The Eastern Montana Drug Task Force

Commander, the DCI Narcotics Chief or a designee, the Sheriff of Custer County,

the Sheriff of Rosebud County, the Chief of Police of the Baker Police

Department, the Sheriff of Carter County, the Chief of Police of the Colstrip

Police Department, the Sheriff of Dawson County, the Sheriff of Fallon County,

the Sheriff of Garfield County, the Chief of Police of the Glendive Police

Department, the Sheriff of McCone County, the Chief of Police of the Miles City

Police Department, the Sheriff of Powder River County, the Sheriff of Prairie

County, the Sheriff of Richland County, the Sheriff of Sheridan County, the Chief
of Police of the Sidney Police Department, the Sheriff of Valley County, and the

Sheriff of Wibaux County. The members of the Executive Board may designate

persons from their agencies to represent the members during Executive Board

meetings.

18

Item a.



5 

The Executive Board shall have the following authority:  to select a Chair and 

Vice Chair; to regulate and manage the EMDTF, to establish subcommittees of 

the Board to conduct business, and to resolve disputes arising from EMDTF 

operations. The selection, direction and removal of law enforcement and support 

personnel assigned to the EMDTF shall be shared with the EMDTF Supervisor, 

whose authority shall be exercised in consultation with the Executive Board. Each 

member of the Executive Board shall have one equal vote. Board members shall 

attend meetings and vote on Task Force business. 

The Chairperson will be the Task Force Supervisor’s primary contact with the 

Board on day-today issues and will bring to the Board’s attention any matters, 

which would require a consensus of the Board prior to a regularly scheduled 

quarterly meeting. The Chairperson shall also preside over the Board meetings 

and is responsible for the formulation of minutes for the meetings and notification 

of Board members of upcoming meetings. The Chairperson shall be a local law 

enforcement member associated with the local drug task force. The tenure of the 

Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be reviewed at the end of each calendar 

year. The vice-chairperson shall conduct the same business in the absence of the 

chairperson. 

A. The Executive Board shall meet at least quarterly, or as convened by the

Chair or Vice Chair to receive reports relative to the progress, functions,

and special duties accomplished by the EMDTF.

B. A quorum of the Executive Board is needed to conduct business. Eleven
Executive Board members, or their designees, shall constitute a quorum. In
meetings where a quorum is established, matters coming before the

Executive Board may be approved by a majority vote of the members in

attendance at a meeting. Attendance may be counted as in-person, via one
of the online virtual meeting sites or by phone.

C. EMDTF officers shall remain subject to the policies, procedures, and

regulations of their parent agencies. Any conflict between state policies

and procedures and the policies and procedures of a parent agency, will be

resolved by the Executive Board. State policies and procedures will be

adopted and used by all EMDTF members relative to drug operations and

informant handling.

14. Those agencies not providing full-time personnel agree to support the Task Force

and cooperate with Task Force investigations. They additionally agree to

designate one officer to act as Department Liaison with the Task Force. The

Department Liaison may participate in any Task Force investigative activities at

the direction of their respective agency head.

19

Item a.



6 

15. The Executive Board will meet at least quarterly in conjunction with the monthly 
intelligence-sharing meeting to maintain the timely sharing of intelligence 
information.

16. Assets seized during Task Force investigations shall be shared as follows: Assets, 
for the purposes of this Memorandum of Understanding, shall include all items of 
value seized relative to a case and all court-ordered fines or contributions to the 
drug fund.

All forfeitures, fines and restitution, obtained as a result of EMDTF investigations, 
will be shared in the following order:

A. The Executive Board may order the transfer of money from the current 
EMDTF forfeiture fund to the EMDTF budget to cover budget shortages or 
equipment purchases not covered under the grant.

B. The forfeitures will be retained by EMDTF in the forfeiture account and 
accrued until the forfeiture monies are needed for matching funds or 
operation budget with a target balance of two (2) years’ budget in the 
absence of local match money or federal grant funds, as approved by the 
Executive Board.

C. Seized and forfeited vehicles and other property will be utilized as directed 
by the Executive Board and Task Force Supervisor. When the Task Force is 

no longer utilizing it, the property will be sold and the proceeds placed into 

the EMDTF drug forfeiture account.

D. Upon termination of the EMDTF the drug forfeiture account will be 
disbursed proportionately based upon the agencies contributions of 
forfeitures, matching funds and/or manpower among the participating 
agencies at the time of the termination. The US Border Patrol shall not 
receive any portion of EMDTF forfeiture funds.

17. Felony Cases

Assets from cases filed in district or federal court that have been investigated by 
and filed on behalf of the EMDTF shall be deposited into either a state or federal 
forfeiture fund for the Eastern Montana Drug Task Force. Assets from cases where 
there is no Task Force involvement may remain with the local jurisdiction or 
allocated to the Drug Forfeiture Fund at the discretion of the agency. Any requests 
for asset sharing will be approved through the Executive Board and will be based 
upon the relative participation in the investigation. All members of the Executive 
Board understand that the priority purpose of the seized assets is to assist with the 
funding of the continued operation of the EMDTF.

20

Item a.



7 

18.  Misdemeanor Cases
 All assets from misdemeanor cases that are handled through “Justice of the

  Peace” or “City Court” shall remain with the local jurisdiction and are not

  required to be deposited to the Eastern Montana Drug Task Force Forfeiture

 Fund. 

19. Eastern Montana Drug Task Force Forfeiture Fund

DCI will open a forfeiture account in the name of the EMDTF to hold forfeited

money, fines and restitution resulting from cases generated by the EMDTF.

Participants in the EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE agree that

assets forfeited and received by EASTERN MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE

will be utilized primarily for the continued funding of the EASTERN

MONTANA DRUG TASK FORCE (Byrne/JAG-funded task force). This money

may be utilized to acquire equipment and resources necessary for the activities

and continued production of EMDTF. Funds may also be utilized as matching

funds remunerated by the agency providing personnel to the Task Force.

A. The project director (the DCI Narcotics Bureau Chief) supervises these

funds subject to Executive Board approval. Any EMDTF forfeitures

(including vehicles, cash, and property), fines and restitution, will be the

property of the EMDTF. The Executive Board will function as the Seizure

Board for Eastern Montana Drug Task Force. Any expenditure of forfeited

EMDTF funds requires approval by a majority of the Executive Board.

B. EMDTF will comply with U.S. Department of Justice requirements for the

equitable sharing of federally forfeited property for state and local law

enforcement agencies.

C. The EMDTF Supervisor and Executive Board will have the authority to

negotiate asset-sharing agreements with nonmember agencies on behalf of

the EMDTF.

20. Drug Fund Financial Reporting

The EMDTF Supervisor shall provide a financial report to the Executive Board at

the quarterly meetings. The report shall become a part of the meeting minutes.

The minimum requirement of the report is:

1. Balance of the Fund at the beginning of the quarter.

2. Total deposits to the Fund during the quarter.

3. Total expended from the fund and an itemization of the expenditures.

4. Balance for the fund at the end of the quarter.

20. Pending Asset Forfeiture Report

Each participating jurisdiction agrees to provide the Task Force Supervisor with

relevant information on asset forfeiture cases and cases with dispositions pending.

21

Item a.



8 

The EMDTF drug forfeiture fund shall be disbursed to the participating agencies 

during the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in July of each 

year. The fund shall be disbursed in the following manner: 

A. PRIMARY DISTRIBUTION

The EMDTF Executive Board may distribute up to 25% of the cash in the

forfeiture fund based on a formula of each agency’s financial participation

in the EMDTF grant.

In the event that the distribution of cash caused the Drug Forfeiture Fund 

balance to drop below a minimum balance of $458,000, then the “total 

distribution” shall be reduced so that the fund balance on July 1 is equal to 

$458,000. 

a. A distribution shall not occur unless the balance exceeds $458,000 in

the fund.

Assets from drug cases filed in district or federal court with the assistance 

of more than one drug task force shall be distributed to the task forces 

proportionally based upon their relative participation in the investigation 

as recommended by the joint captains of the task force. If the task force 

commanders cannot agree on the said proportion, then the distribution 

must be referred to the Executive Board or Board of Directors of each of 

the task forces that participated in any such cases. 

B. SECONDARY DISTRIBUTION

The EMDTF Executive Board, at its sole discretion, may authorize

additional distribution of forfeiture funds to member agencies that provide

personnel to the Task Force, but are not a participant in the grant. The

distribution shall be based on the operation budget for the officer, and the

fund balance as approved by the EMDTF Board. The requesting agency

may submit only those budgetary items that are approved in the EMDTF.

The budget is subject to the same limitations as grant budgets.

The secondary distribution is in addition to the primary distribution of 

25%. The secondary distribution shall be at the same percentage formula 

as the distribution formula. 

22. The participating agencies agree to supply their assigned officer with equipment

necessary in carrying out the EMDTF objectives. Radio-equipped vehicles will be

supplied by the EMDTF whenever possible; however, the ultimate responsibility

to supply a radio-equipped vehicle is the participating agency that employs the

assigned officer. Upon termination of the EMDTF, equipment that was initially

supplied to the EMDTF by participating agencies shall be returned to said agency.

Equipment shared/purchased jointly by all participating EMDTF agencies shall be

split equally upon termination of the EMDTF.

22

Item a.



9 

23. Each officer assigned to the EMDTF will carry only those firearms, while on

official duty, that are issued or approved by the Department of Justice and/or the

respective departments. Further, the officer shall be qualified with those firearms.

24. The EMDTF shall maintain on a current basis complete and accurate records and

accounts of all obligations and expenditures of funds under this Memorandum of

Understanding in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

instructions provided by the Department of Justice to facilitate on-sight inspection

and auditing of such records and accounts.

25. No new entity is created by reason of this Memorandum of Understanding.

26. The EMDTF shall permit and have readily available for examination and auditing

by the Department of Justice and/or the Montana Legislative Audit Division, any

and all of their duly authorized agents and representatives, any and all records,

documents, accounts, invoices, receipts, or expenditures relating to this

Memorandum of Understanding. Therefore, records must be maintained by a

body, which will continue to exist until all audits and examinations are completed

and resolved, or for a period of six years after termination of this Memorandum of

Understanding.

Attached to and part of this document are the signatures of the EMDTF Executive Board 

and their respective County Commissioner Chairmen and/or Mayors who have agreed to 

abide by this Memorandum of Understanding.  

23

Item a.



24

Item a.



25

Item a.



26

Item a.



27

Item a.



28

Item a.



29

Item a.



30

Item a.



31

Item a.



32

Item a.



33

Item a.



34

Item a.



35

Item a.



36

Item a.



37

Item a.



38

Item a.



39

Item a.



Zoning/Board of Adjustment Meeting 4-10-2024 April 10, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Zoning/Board of Adjustment Meeting 4-10-2024 
April 10, 2024 8:00 AM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 713 080 5898 Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Zoning/Board of Adjustment Members Present: Jones, Meldahl, Seitz and Hintz 

Other's Present: Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Shanks, FM/BI Rasmussen, Mayor 
Norby, Jack Legg (JL Construction), Francisco Aguilar (JL Construction), Adam Knudson (JL Construction), 
Bill Fink, Sandy Fink and Jim Hanson 

1. New Business 

 

a. Aguilar Lot Coverage Variance of 363 sq. ft. at 805 S Lincoln Ave 

Chair Jones called the meeting to order for the variance request of Francisco Aguilar for a lot 
coverage variance of 363 square feet over the 40% maximum coverage per city code 11-6-40.  Mr. 
Agular stated this variance is for a 25X47 foot garage in front of his 4-plex at 805 S Lincoln Ave.  He 
stated it would have 12 foot walls with 4 garage bays and that it meets all other requirements.  He 
further stated there are other houses on the same street that are closer to the curb than this 
garage would be. 

In discussion Mr. Fink asked how this request is different from the previous request and FM/BI 
Rasmussen stated he has reduced the size of the garage.  Mr. Fink stated he does not feel this 
request meets the 7 criteria required for granting a variance, especially number 3 that the code 
creates an undue hardship.   

Other issues with the granting of the variance discussed included visibility issues for traffic, on-
street parking, devaluing neighboring properties, drainage on neighboring properties and off 
street parking as laid out in the plans provided.  In rebuttal Mr. Aguilar stated the proposed garage 
will not be any closer to the street than other houses on the block and will not cause visibility 
issues.  He further stated all properties use the on street parking causing visibility issues at times 
and regardless of the variance he will be moving forward with the garage, it will just have one less 
bay and therefore will meet the lot coverage regulations.   Pertaining to the previous drainage 

40

Item b.



Zoning/Board of Adjustment Meeting 4-10-2024 April 10, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

issues discussed at the previous request of Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Fink stated he has installed eves that 
now have extensions to the street, although the extensions where just installed.  He further stated 
Mr. Aguilar installed the cement apron, but he feels it slopes towards his property and is not 
solving the issues.  Mr. Aguilar stated he feels the work done has satisfied the drainage issues, and 
Mr. Aguilar stated that there will be no parking in the street. Mr. Aguilar also mentioned that 
there will be no parking in the back of the building, just in front of the building and approximately 
15-20 feet from the curb.  

Mr. Aguilar asked the board if there was anyway that this meeting could be postponed for a later 
date, so Mr. Aguilar and J&L Contractors could go back and re-draw the maps and re-measure and 
supply the board with more additional information. Mr. Fink said that appreciates the board time 
but, think that Mr. Aguilar should of been more prepared before this meeting since this is the 
second time the board is meeting regarding the same variance request.  

Mr. Seitz made a motion to table this variance meeting until the measurements are accurate and 
BI/FM Rasmussen has gone over to the property and verified the measurements, and Mr. Seitz 
would like for BI/FM Rasmussen to get all measurements and details before any more variance 
meetings come forward.  

Mr. Seitz- Yes 

Mr. Meldahl- Yes 

Mr. Jones- No 

Public Works Director Hintz- Abstain from voting 

Public Works Director Hintz stated that the reasons he is abstain from voting right now is because 
he is neighbors with the three other properties. Chairman Jones mentioned that the maybe the 
board should drive to Mr. Aguilar property and physically take a look at where the garage is going 
to be on the property for a better picture. 

The variance meeting is temporarily adjourned at 8:44am ,and will re open up at 1:30pm today at 
Mr. Aguilar property (805 S Lincoln Ave).  

Chairman Jones re-opened up the Mr. Aguilar variance request at 1:30pm at Mr. Aguilar property 
(805 S Lincoln Ave), and Public Works Director Hintz showed Mr. Aguilar where the property pins 
are located on his property. Mr. Aguilar showed the board members and Mr. Fink and Mr. Hansen 
where the garage is going to be located on his property. Mr. Aguilar stated that the garage walls 
and trusses are going to be 12 feet tall, and Chairman Jones believes that it will be unsafe to back 
out from the property onto lincoln. Mr. Fink asked why he would still need a variance for the three 
stalls and eight parking spots, and Public Works Director Hintz mentioned an idea about Mr. 
Aguilar just building a carport with three stalls then.  

Mr. Meldahl made a motion to approve the variance request as submitted for Mr. Aguilar, Mr. 
Seitz seconded the motion, with no further questions or concerns, motion was approved.  

41

Item b.



Zoning/Board of Adjustment Meeting 4-10-2024 April 10, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

Motion made by  Meldahl, Seconded by  Seitz. 
Voting Yea:  Jones 
Voting Abstaining:  Hintz 

Adjourned at 1:36pm.  

42

Item b.



43

Item b.



44

Item b.



45

Item b.



46

Item b.



47

Item b.



48

Item b.



49

Item b.



50

Item b.



51

Item b.



Grant Agreement # Project Name

DNRC Grant Manager Shawna Swanz Claim Number Q1 2024

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION OF GOODS DELIVERED OR SERVICES RENDERED AMOUNT

Vendor Invoice Number Dates of Service Task Description

1 Morrison-Maierle, Inc 234468 12/1/2023 Grant Admin 403.50$                      

Final Design 4,651.28$                   

1 Morrison-Maierle, Inc 243231 2/2/2024 Grant Admin 737.25$                      

1 Morrison-Maierle, Inc 243316 3/1/2024 Grant Admin 233.00$                      

GRAND TOTAL 6,025.03$                   

Vendor Name 

(Authroized Person)

Date Processed

Title

STATE OF MONTANA

VENDOR INVOICE

COMPLETE VENDOR INVOICE FOR REIMBURSEMENT

ATTACH COPIES OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

SIGN AND DATE BELOW BEFORE SUBMITTING TO DNRC FOR REIMBURSEMENT

VENDOR'S NAME AND ADDRESS DNRC-CARDD

City of Sidney PO Box 201601

DNRC Authorized 

Signature

Vendor’s Signature
Date

115 2nd St SE Helena, MT 59620-1601

Sidney, MT 59270

AC-22-0158 Anderson Subdivision Drainage

STATE USE ONLY I certify that this invoice is correct in all respects and that payment 

has not been received.APPROVED FOR PAYMENT

1
52

Item a.



UNIFORM STATUS OF FUNDS SPREADSHEET FOR:                                                           

DATE:                                                           Q1 2024

ADMINISTRATIVE/ 

FINANCIAL COSTS: Budgeted

Previously 

Expended

Amount of 

Draw

Balance 

Remaining Budgeted

Previously 

Expended

Amount of 

Draw

Balance 

Remaining Budgeted

Previously 

Expended

Amount of 

Draw

Balance 

Remaining Budgeted Expended Balance

Grant Management (consultant) $6,221.00 $4,336.50 $1,373.75 $510.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,221.00 $5,710.25 $510.75

Audit $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Administrative Costs $6,221.00 $4,336.50 $1,373.75 $510.75 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,221.00 $5,710.25 $10,510.75

ACTIVITY COSTS:

Preliminary Engineering Design $14,265.00 $14,265.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,817.88 $25,235.52 $53,053.40 $14,265.00 $67,318.40 $53,053.40

Final Engineering Design $10,287.00 $5,635.72 $4,651.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,287.00 $10,287.00 $0.00

Construction Inspection Eng. $17,962.00 $17,962.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,962.00 $0.00 $17,962.00

Construction $106,791.00 $106,791.00 $0.00 $0.00 $95,526.00 $95,526.00 $202,317.00 $0.00 $202,317.00

Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Activity Costs $149,305.00 $19,900.72 $4,651.28 $124,753.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $145,526.00 $27,817.88 $25,235.52 $92,472.60 $294,831.00 $77,605.40 $217,225.60

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $155,526.00 $24,237.22 $6,025.03 $125,263.75 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $145,526.00 $27,817.88 $25,235.52 $92,472.60 $311,052.00 $83,315.65 $227,736.35

Copy and submit to the applicable funding agency with each drawdown request.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

uniblank2.xls

City of Sidney Anderson Subdivision Drainage

ARPA Total BudgetLocal CashLocal In-Kind

53

Item a.



UNIFORM INVOICE TRACKING SPREADSHEET FOR:                       

DATE: Q1 2024

Vendor's Name

Invoice or 

Pay 

Estimate 

Number             

Invoice 

Date or 

Time 

Period 

Covered

Task Description 

(match budget)

Total Amount 

of Invoice

Warrant 

Number
Date Paid ARPA # Local In-Kind # Local Cash #

Total Amount 

Paid This 

Invoice

Notes on Split or 

Partial Invoices

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 233423 03/31/23

Admin, Preliminary 

Design, $1,567.50 39117 04/24/23 $1,567.50 1 $0.00 $0.00 $1,567.50

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 233530 04/28/23

Preliminary Design, 

Final Design $754.50 39228 06/08/23 $754.50 2 $0.00 $0.00 $754.50

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 233642 06/02/23

Admin, Prelim Design, 

Final Design $12,838.18 39294 06/12/23 $12,838.18 2 $0.00 $0.00 $12,838.18

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 233926 08/14/23 Admin, Final Design $12,537.13 39544 09/12/23 $2,125.50 3 $0.00 $10,411.63 $12,537.13

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 234071 09/01/23 Admin, Final Design $6,754.50 39630 10/05/23 $3,123.54 4 $0.00 $3,630.96 $6,754.50

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 234159 09/26/23 Grant Admin $7,348.79 39680 10/20/23 $1,228.50 4 $0.00 $6,120.29 $7,348.79

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 234255 10/27/23 Admin, Final Design $10,254.50 39792 11/13/23 $2,599.50 4 $0.00 $7,655.00 $10,254.50

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 234468 12/01/23 Admin, Final Design $9,314.05 39976 01/08/24 $5,054.78 5 $0.00 $4,259.27 $9,314.05

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 243093 12/31/23 Final Design $7,993.75 40167 03/11/24 $0.00 5 $0.00 $7,993.75 $7,993.75

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 243231 02/02/24 Admin, Final Design $10,205.75 40160 03/11/24 $737.25 5 $0.00 $9,468.50 $10,205.75

Morrison-Maierle, Inc 243316 03/01/24 Admin, Design $3,747.00 40203 03/25/24 $233.00 5 $0.00 $3,514.00 $3,747.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL INVOICES $83,315.65 $30,262.25 $0.00 $53,053.40 $83,315.65

TOTAL BUDGET $155,526.00 $10,000.00 $145,526.00 $311,052.00

BALANCE $125,263.75 $10,000.00 $92,472.60 $227,736.35

Copy and submit to the applicable funding agency with each drawdown request.

uniblank.xls

City of Sidney Anderson Subdivision Drainage

54

Item a.



For Professional Services Rendered Through 12/1/2023

Current Billings 9,314.05
Amount Due This Bill 9,314.05

Billings
Fee Available To Date Previous Current

01 - Billing Summary 147,785.00 95,729.90 61,369.15 52,055.10 9,314.05
Rate Labor 8,728.75
Unit Rate Expense 585.30

Molly R. Davidson

Professional engineering services provided for project coordination, grant admin, survey, environmental compliance, design, and construction admin 
for stormwater improvements.

Attention: Jeff Hintz
City of Sidney
115 2nd Street S.E.
Sidney, MT 59270
UNITED STATES

Invoice : 000234468
Invoice Date : 12/19/2023

Project : 071703300
Project Name : Sidney - Anderson Subdivision 

Drainage Improvements
Bill Term : 01

55

Item a.



Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements Invoice:   000234468
000 - Project Management/Grant Administration
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Design Engineer I 0.50 159.000 79.50
Supervising Engineer I 1.50 216.000 324.00

Total Rate Labor 403.50
Total Bill Task: 000 - Project Management/Grant Administration 403.50

010 - Preliminary Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

CAD Tech I 24.75 95.000 2,351.25
Total Rate Labor 2,351.25

030 - Design Survey
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Land Surveyor II 5.00 140.000 700.00
Total Rate Labor 700.00

Unit Rate Expenses
Account / Unit / Equipment Quantity Rate Amount
Transportation - Co. Auto
Pickup
Vehicle #286 - Billings Truck 679.00 0.862 585.30

Total Unit Rate Expenses 585.30
Total Bill Task: 030 - Design Survey 1,285.30

040 - Final Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Design Engineer I 8.00 159.000 1,272.00
Total Design Engineer I 8.00 1,272.00

Engineer Intern II 29.00 138.000 4,002.00
Total Rate Labor 5,274.00

Total Bill Task: 040 - Final Design 5,274.00

Total Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements 9,314.05

Page:  156

Item a.



For Professional Services Rendered Through 12/31/2023

Current Billings 7,993.75
Amount Due This Bill 7,993.75

Billings
Fee Available To Date Previous Current

01 - Billing Summary 147,785.00 86,415.85 69,362.90 61,369.15 7,993.75
Final design effort
Rate Labor 7,993.75

Molly R. Davidson

Professional engineering services provided for project coordination, grant admin, survey, environmental compliance, design, and construction admin 
for stormwater improvements.

Attention: Jeff Hintz
City of Sidney
115 2nd Street S.E.
Sidney, MT 59270
UNITED STATES

Invoice : 000243093
Invoice Date : 1/17/2024

Project : 071703300
Project Name : Sidney - Anderson Subdivision 

Drainage Improvements
Bill Term : 01

57

Item a.



Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements Invoice:   000243093
010 - Preliminary Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

CAD Tech I 29.00 95.000 2,755.00
Total Rate Labor 2,755.00

040 - Final Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Design Engineer I 27.00 159.000 4,293.00
Engineer Intern II 2.25 138.000 310.50
Supervising Engineer I 1.50 216.000 324.00
Technical Intern 3.75 83.000 311.25

Total Rate Labor 5,238.75
Total Bill Task: 040 - Final Design 5,238.75

Total Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements 7,993.75

Page:  158

Item a.



For Professional Services Rendered Through 2/2/2024

Current Billings 10,205.75
Amount Due This Bill 10,205.75

Billings
Fee Available To Date Previous Current

01 - Billing Summary 147,785.00 78,422.10 79,568.65 69,362.90 10,205.75
Rate Labor 10,205.75

Molly R. Davidson

Professional engineering services provided for project coordination, grant admin, survey, environmental compliance, design, and construction admin 
for stormwater improvements.

Outstanding Receivables Invoice Number Date Amount Balance Due
000243093 1/17/2024 7,993.75 7,993.75

7,993.75

Attention: Jeff Hintz
City of Sidney
115 2nd Street S.E.
Sidney, MT 59270
UNITED STATES

Invoice : 000243231
Invoice Date : 2/19/2024

Project : 071703300
Project Name : Sidney - Anderson Subdivision 

Drainage Improvements
Bill Term : 01

59

Item a.



Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements Invoice:   000243231
000 - Project Management/Grant Administration
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Engineer Intern II 1.50 142.000 213.00
Supervising Engineer I 2.25 233.000 524.25

Total Rate Labor 737.25
Total Bill Task: 000 - Project Management/Grant Administration 737.25

030 - Design Survey
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Land Surveyor III 8.00 164.000 1,312.00
Total Rate Labor 1,312.00

040 - Final Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Cad Tech I 33.75 98.000 3,307.50
Design Engineer II 3.50 186.000 651.00
Engineer Intern II 25.00 142.000 3,550.00

Total Rate Labor 7,508.50
Total Bill Task: 040 - Final Design 7,508.50

088 - Quality Assurance
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Senior Engineer II 3.00 216.000 648.00
Total Rate Labor 648.00

Total Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements 10,205.75

Page:  160

Item a.



For Professional Services Rendered Through 3/1/2024

Current Billings 3,747.00
Amount Due This Bill 3,747.00

Billings
Fee Available To Date Previous Current

01 - Billing Summary 147,785.00 68,216.35 83,315.65 79,568.65 3,747.00
Rate Labor 3,747.00

Molly R. Davidson

Professional engineering services provided for project coordination, grant admin, survey, environmental compliance, design, and construction admin 
for stormwater improvements.

Outstanding Receivables Invoice Number Date Amount Balance Due
000243093 1/17/2024 7,993.75 7,993.75
000243231 2/19/2024 10,205.75 10,205.75

18,199.50

Attention: Jeff Hintz
City of Sidney
115 2nd Street S.E.
Sidney, MT 59270
UNITED STATES

Invoice : 000243316
Invoice Date : 3/8/2024

Project : 071703300
Project Name : Sidney - Anderson Subdivision 

Drainage Improvements
Bill Term : 01

61

Item a.



Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements Invoice:   000243316
000 - Project Management/Grant Administration
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Supervising Engineer I 1.00 233.000 233.00
Total Rate Labor 233.00

030 - Design Survey
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Land Surveyor III 3.50 164.000 574.00
Land Surveyor IV 1.00 170.000 170.00
Senior Survey Manager 0.50 226.000 113.00
Survey Technician III 2.00 114.000 228.00

Total Rate Labor 1,085.00
Total Bill Task: 030 - Design Survey 1,085.00

040 - Final Design
Rate Labor
Class Hours Rate Amount

Cad Tech I 5.50 98.000 539.00
Design Engineer II 7.00 186.000 1,302.00
Engineer Intern II 2.50 142.000 355.00
Supervising Engineer I 1.00 233.000 233.00

Total Rate Labor 2,429.00
Total Bill Task: 040 - Final Design 2,429.00

Total Project:   071703300 - Sidney - Anderson Subdivision Drainage Improvements 3,747.00

Page:  162

Item a.



 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 1 of 6  

 
 
 

 
ARPA Water & Sewer Infrastructure Grant Program 

Q4 2023 Progress Report Form 
 

General Information 
 

Subrecipient Entity: Sidney, City of 

Project Title: Sidney, City of - Anderson Subdivision Storm Water Improvements 

Grant Agreement Number(s): AC-22-0158 

Grant Term End Date(s): December 31, 2024 

Form Preparer Name: Carly Andregg, Morrison-Maierle (consultant) 

Form Preparer Phone: 406-542-4866 

Form Preparer Email: Candregg@m-m.net 

Reporting Period: January 1, 2024 – March 31, 2024 

 Provide a beginning and end date. Example: January 1, 2024 – March 31, 2024. 
 
 

Quarterly Report Type 
 

X Progress Report with Reimbursement Request. 

 Progress Report without Reimbursement Request. 

 
Final Reports – Do not use this form. See Progress Reports, Amendments, and Closeout on the ARPA Grant Management 
page for instructions on how to complete your Final Report. 
 
 

Required Report Attachments  
Check to indicate the required attachments are included with this report. 
 

X Updated Schedule Form is included with this report (REQUIRED). 

 

The schedule form should be an accurate reflection of the status of the project, including bid and construction 
information. The schedule you are attaching must be appropriate given the Grant Term End Date in the grant 
agreement (or executed grant amendment).  

 

X Updated Uniform Budget Tracking Spreadsheet is included with this report (REQUIRED). 

 

Include an updated budget spreadsheet that reflects current and previous expenditures on the grant(s). The 
tracker should be accurate through the end of the reporting period and include all incurred expenditures for all 
funding sources regardless of whether a reimbursement is requested. Attachment B – Budget in the grant 
agreement (or executed grant amendment) must match the current project budget you are attaching.   

 
 

  

63

Item a.

https://arpa-mtdnrc.hub.arcgis.com/pages/grant-management
http://dnrc.mt.gov/divisions/cardd/docs/arpa/grant-management/04-project-schedule_rev-07-2022_fillable.pdf
https://repos.dnrc.mt.gov/esri/hub/arpa/assets/Uniform_Budget_and_StatusofFunds_Tracker.xlsx


 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 2 of 6  

Progress Reporting 
 

1. Grant Activities this Reporting Period (REQUIRED) 
List project tasks outlined in Attachment A – Scope of Work in the grant agreement (or executed grant amendment). 
Summarize activities that occurred under each task during the reporting period, including tasks with no activity. 
Provide an overview of progress on the overall project. Indicate tasks completed. 

 

  

Scope of Work 
The Anderson Subdivision Storm Water Improvements project will help buffer and reduce peak flows through the 
Subdivision. This will result in increased safety and lesser risk of surcharged flows inundating the neighborhood. The 
project will benefit public safety and water quality in the Yellowstone River by conveying runoff in a controlled and 
protected environment. 
 
The scope of work was amended after Q3 2023. After further model development of the hydraulics and hydrology in 
the watershed for the Sidney-Anderson Subdivision Stormwater Improvements project, it was determined that a 
detention pond in the upper portion of the basin will not alleviate flooding as it was anticipated in concept design. The 
scope of work is amended to improving the culvert near where flooding occurs to increase capacity. 
 
ARPA Competitive Grant Funds will be utilized to fund Preliminary Engineering Design, Final Engineering Design, 
Construction Inspection Engineering, a portion of Construction, and Grant Management costs by a consultant on behalf 
of the City of Sidney. 
 
Revised Construction activities include: 

 Install new inlet structure and storm drain under 22nd Ave NW to increase drainage capacity  

 Remove the existing undersized on-grade culvert 

 Install pipe under the drainage to safely contain and convey runoff through the neighborhood 

 Install a trash rack at the entrance to the pipe to prevent debris from entering 

 Connect the pipe directly into the storm system to prevent surcharge 

 Capture and convey runoff from a 10-year event and prevent flooding in nearby homes and yards 

 Procure temporary and permanent easements for the new stormwater infrastructure 
 
 
Activity Progress 
 
Preliminary Engineering Design: 100% complete 
Preliminary engineering design drawings are complete. No activity during this quarter 
 
Final Engineering Design:  95% complete 
Activities during this quarter include drafting of final construction drawings and preparing easements. Extensive 
boundary research was required to locate the appropriate documentation for an adjacent property.  
 
Construction Inspection Eng: 0% complete 
Construction: 0% complete 
 
 

64

Item a.



 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 3 of 6  

2. Problems or Concerns (REQUIRED) 
Discuss any problems or concerns that have arisen (e.g., problems with the schedule, subcontractors, or budget 
items). Include steps underway to alleviate problems. 

 
 
3. Next Reporting Period’s Grant Activities (REQUIRED) 

List project tasks outlined in Attachment A – Scope of Work in the grant agreement (or executed grant amendment). 
Summarize activities that will occur next quarter under each task, including tasks with no expected activity. Indicate 
tasks expected to be completed. 

 

 
  

None 

Next quarter’s activities include coordinating with landowners to secure easements and preparing the project for bid. 
Construction is estimated for the summer.   

65

Item a.



 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 4 of 6  

Grant Agreement Review Checklist 
Review the ARPA Grant Agreement(s) and executed grant amendment(s). Respond to the questions below.  
 
1. Review Agreement Section 2. Term – Is the Term End Date in the grant agreement still appropriate for the project?  

 

☒ YES – Term End Date in the grant 
agreement is appropriate for the project 
to date. 

 ☐ NO or NOT SURE – Contact your Grant Manager 
ASAP to explain. A grant amendment may be 
needed. 

 

 
2. Review Grant Agreement Attachment A – Scope of Work (Tasks/Deliverables) – Do the tasks/deliverables listed in 

the Scope of Work in the grant agreement (or executed grant amendment) accurately reflect the project to date? 
 

☒ YES – Scope of Work in the grant 
agreement accurately reflects the project 
to date. 

 ☐ NO or NOT SURE – Contact your Grant Manager 
ASAP to explain. A grant amendment may be 
needed. 

 
3. Review Grant Agreement Attachment B – Budget – Do the DNRC ARPA grant funds and matching funds in the budget 

in the grant agreement (or executed grant amendment) accurately reflect the project to date?   
 

☒ YES – The budget in the grant agreement 
accurately reflects the project to date. 

 ☐ NO or NOT SURE – Contact your Grant Manager 
ASAP to explain. A grant amendment may be 
needed. 

 
 

Additional Report Attachments (Optional) 
Attach pictures, articles, maps, or any other document related to this quarter that you would like to include in the report. 
 
 
 

Verification of Subrecipient Concurrence 
REQUIRED only if Form Preparer is not from Subrecipient Entity 

 

Subrecipient Contact Full Name:  

Subrecipient Contact Title:  

Subrecipient Contact Email:  

 

☐ The Subrecipient Contact listed above has reviewed this Progress Report and supporting documents. The 
Subrecipient Contact concurs with the information provided.  

 

66

Item a.



 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 5 of 6  

DNRC Reimbursement Request Process 
 
 
See Reimbursements and Budget Tracking tab on the DNRC ARPA Grant Management webpage for documents and 
training videos.  
 
 

Documents Required for Reimbursement 
 

1. Progress Report – The subrecipient must submit a project progress report with each reimbursement request at a 
minimum on a quarterly basis. DNRC will not honor claims for reimbursement if DNRC has not approved the 
progress report or if there is a delinquent report.  

2. DNRC Vendor Invoice – The subrecipient must include a State of Montana Vendor Invoice signed by the grant’s 
authorized representative or an official from the subrecipient organization approved by the authorized 
representative and DNRC. 

3. Supporting Documentation – Invoices/Receipts, Pay Apps, Proofs of Payment, etc.  
4. Uniform Budget Tracking Spreadsheet – Must include budget tracking tab and invoice tracking tab. 

 
 

Document Links 
 
Overview of Reimbursements - Instructional Video  (Slides 33-40) 

1. DNRC Reimbursement Guide - Guidance Document 
2. DNRC Vendor Invoice - Invoice Form and Instructions 
3. Eligible Expenses for ARPA Grant Administration - Guidance Document 
4. DNRC Reimbursement for Personnel Services - Guidance Document and Instructional Video 
5. DNRC Signature Authorization Form 

   
 Budget Tracker - Instructional Video (Slides 36-39) 

1. Updated Uniform Budget Tracker Form - Excel Spreadsheet Form 
 
  

67

Item a.

https://arpa-mtdnrc.hub.arcgis.com/pages/grant-management
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cPdK80Un_CI
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/ARPA/GrantManagement/Grant_Management_101_Web.pdf#page=33
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/CARDD-Training/DNRC-Reimbursement-Request-Guide-Complete.pdf
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/CARDD-Training/Vendor-invoice-fillable.pdf
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/CARDD-Training/Vendor-Invoice-Instructions.pdf
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/ARPA/Tools-and-Resources/DNRC-Admin-Expenses-Allowable.pdf
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/CARDD-Training/DNRC-Reimbursement-for-Personnel-Services-Guide-Final.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=I5qM8jiYbxo
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/CARDD-Training/DNRC-Signature-Authorization-Form.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=C635-8wXaGM
https://dnrc.mt.gov/_docs/conservation/ARPA/GrantManagement/Grant_Management_101_Web.pdf#page=36
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fdnrc.mt.gov%2F_docs%2Fconservation%2FARPA%2FGrantManagement%2FUniform_Budget_and_StatusofFunds_Tracker1.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


 
 

ARPA Quarterly Progress Report Form - 2024  Page 6 of 6  

DNRC Grant Amendment Request Process 
 
 
1. Subrecipient prepares amendment request. 

a. Determine updates needed to the grant agreement. Review these sections: 
 Section 2. Term 
 Attachment A - Scope of Work and Schedule  
 Attachment B – Budget 

b. Include a justification. Justification must support the change of scope, schedule, term date, and/or budget.   
c. Include a draft scope, schedule, term date, and/or budget that reflects necessary updates. Identify changes 

if not obvious. 
 
 

2. Subrecipient submits amendment request to DNRC in writing.  
The Authorized Representative or designee from the subrecipient organization must submit the amendment request 
IN WRITING to the DNRC Grant Manager.  

 
 
3. DNRC Grant Manager reviews the written amendment request and provides written response to subrecipient 

approve it, deny it, or request more information.  
DNRC will review the subrecipient’s written amendment request and notify the subrecipient in writing if the request 
is approved and whether a formal amendment to the grant agreement is necessary. DNRC Grant Manager will notify 
the grant recipient in writing if the request is not approved or if more information is needed. 

 
 

Subrecipient must receive DNRC’s WRITTEN APPROVAL of an amendment request before making 
purchases or agreements on goods or services other than those specifically identified in the  

grant agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

68

Item a.



69

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

1001 1 LS 138,230.00$ 138,230.00$ 1.00 1.00 138,230.00$ 138,230.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1002 880 LF 170.00$ 149,600.00$ 878 878 149,260.00$ 149,260.00$ 99.77% 340.00$ 
1003 85 LF 140.00$ 11,900.00$ 66 66 9,240.00$ 9,240.00$ 77.65% 2,660.00$ 

1004 6 EA 8,400.00$ 50,400.00$ 6 6 50,400.00$ 50,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1005 1 EA 6,200.00$ 6,200.00$ 1 1 6,200.00$ 6,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1006 1 EA 4,600.00$ 4,600.00$ 1 1 4,600.00$ 4,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1007 1 EA 4,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 1 1 4,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1008 1 EA 3,500.00$ 3,500.00$ 1 1 3,500.00$ 3,500.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1009 1 EA 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 1 1 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 

1010 1 EA 2,800.00$ 2,800.00$ 1 1 2,800.00$ 2,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1011 4 EA 2,900.00$ 11,600.00$ 4 4 11,600.00$ 11,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1012 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2 2 4,800.00$ 4,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1013 3 EA 15,000.00$ 45,000.00$ 3 3 45,000.00$ 45,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1014 94 LF 63.00$ 5,922.00$ 94 94 5,922.00$ 5,922.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1015 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 1 1 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1016 1 EA 880.00$ 880.00$ 1 1 880.00$ 880.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1017 43 LF 65.00$ 2,795.00$ 65 65 4,225.00$ 4,225.00$ 151.16% (1,430.00)$ 

1018 1 EA 4,400.00$ 4,400.00$ 1 1 4,400.00$ 4,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1019 1 EA 740.00$ 740.00$ 1 1 740.00$ 740.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1020 43 LF 36.00$ 1,548.00$ 43 43 1,548.00$ 1,548.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1021 5 EA 1,100.00$ 5,500.00$ 6 6 6,600.00$ 6,600.00$ 120.00% (1,100.00)$ 

1022 4 EA 500.00$ 2,000.00$ 6 6 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 150.00% (1,000.00)$ 

1023 114 LF 20.00$ 2,280.00$ 183 183 3,660.00$ 3,660.00$ 160.53% (1,380.00)$ 

1024 1259 LF 1.00$ 1,259.00$ 1359 1359 1,359.00$ 1,359.00$ 107.94% (100.00)$ 
1025 2 EA 1,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 7 7 7,000.00$ 7,000.00$ 350.00% (5,000.00)$ 

1026 7 EA 1,300.00$ 9,100.00$ 3 3 3,900.00$ 3,900.00$ 42.86% 5,200.00$ 

1027 375 LF 11.00$ 4,125.00$ 500 500 5,500.00$ 5,500.00$ 133.33% (1,375.00)$ 

1028 1 LS 263,000.00$ 263,000.00$ 1.00 1.00 263,000.00$ 263,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1029 90 LF 68.00$ 6,120.00$ 120 120 8,160.00$ 8,160.00$ 133.33% (2,040.00)$ 

1030 1100 SF 17.00$ 18,700.00$ 828 828 14,076.00$ 14,076.00$ 75.27% 4,624.00$ 

1031 1475 SY 15.00$ 22,125.00$ 1501 1501 22,515.00$ 22,515.00$ 101.76% (390.00)$ 
1032 1475 SY 115.00$ 169,625.00$ 1501 1501 172,615.00$ 172,615.00$ 101.76% (2,990.00)$ 

1033 2550 CY 143.00$ 364,650.00$ 1662 1662 237,666.00$ 237,666.00$ 65.18% 126,984.00$ 

1034 75 CY 83.00$ 6,225.00$ -$ -$ 6,225.00$ 

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

12"x12" Tee

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Schedule I (Central Ave.) - *Base Bid

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance
12" Water Main (DIP)
8" Water Main (DIP)

12/31/202310/29/2023

12" Gate Valve
8" Gate Valve
12"x12" Cross

12"x8" Tee

12" 22.5o Bend
12"x8" Reducer
Connect to Existing Main (12")
Connect to Existing Main (8")
Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (DIP)
2" Water Service Connection (WSC)
2" Curbstop
2" Service Pipe (Copper)
1 1/2" Water Service Connection (WSC)
1 1/2" Curbstop
1 1/2" Service Pipe (Copper)
1" Water Service Connection (WSC)
1" Curbstop
1" Service Pipe (Copper)
Tracer Wire
Temporary Water (Residential)
Temporary Water (Commercial)
Asbestos Pipe Removal
Contaiminated Soil Removal & Disposal
Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement
Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement

Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (MDT ROW: 6")
Flowable Fill
Type II Bedding

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

70

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

1035 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 3 3 660.00$ 660.00$ 30.00% 1,540.00$ 

1036 1 LS 33,000.00$ 33,000.00$ 0.90 0.10 1.00 33,000.00$ 33,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
1037 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 2415 2415.00 2,415.00$ 2,415.00$ 96.60% 85.00$ 
1038 7500 UNIT 1.00$ 7,500.00$ 35534.55 35534.55 35,534.55$ 35,534.55$ 473.79% (28,034.55)$ 

1,378,324.00$ 1,275,505.55$ 1,275,505.55$ 102,818.45$ 

2001 1 LS 66,200.00$ 66,200.00$ 1.00 1.00 66,200.00$ 66,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2002 967 LF 100.00$ 96,700.00$ 953 953 95,300.00$ 95,300.00$ 98.55% 1,400.00$ 

2003 53 LF 100.00$ 5,300.00$ 53 53 5,300.00$ 5,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2004 4 EA 5,800.00$ 23,200.00$ 4 4 23,200.00$ 23,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2005 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 1 1 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2006 1 EA 3,300.00$ 3,300.00$ 1 1 3,300.00$ 3,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2007 1 EA 3,250.00$ 3,250.00$ 1 1 3,250.00$ 3,250.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2008 2 EA 3,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 2 2 6,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2009 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ 1 1 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2010 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1 1 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 

2011 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1 1 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2012 4 EA 2,300.00$ 9,200.00$ 4 4 9,200.00$ 9,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2013 1 EA 6,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 1 1 6,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2014 3 EA 9,800.00$ 29,400.00$ 3 3 29,400.00$ 29,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2015 110 LF 32.00$ 3,520.00$ 111 111 3,552.00$ 3,552.00$ 100.91% (32.00)$ 
2016 1 LS 6,600.00$ 6,600.00$ 1 1 6,600.00$ 6,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2017 30 LF 18.00$ 540.00$ 30 30 540.00$ 540.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2018 1 LS 7,800.00$ 7,800.00$ 1 1 7,800.00$ 7,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2019 196 LF 7.00$ 1,372.00$ 216 216 1,512.00$ 1,512.00$ 110.20% (140.00)$ 
2020 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2 2 4,800.00$ 4,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2021 2 EA 680.00$ 1,360.00$ 2 2 1,360.00$ 1,360.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2022 146 LF 7.00$ 1,022.00$ 163 163 1,141.00$ 1,141.00$ 111.64% (119.00)$ 
2023 9 EA 2,200.00$ 19,800.00$ 9 9 19,800.00$ 19,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2024 9 EA 390.00$ 3,510.00$ 9 9 3,510.00$ 3,510.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2025 381 LF 6.00$ 2,286.00$ 392 392 2,352.00$ 2,352.00$ 102.89% (66.00)$ 
2026 1 EA 1,400.00$ 1,400.00$ -$ -$ 1,400.00$ 

2027 1883 LF 1.00$ 1,883.00$ 1937 1937 1,937.00$ 1,937.00$ 102.87% (54.00)$ 
2028 14 EA 1,000.00$ 14,000.00$ 3 3 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 21.43% 11,000.00$ 

2029 160 LF 68.00$ 10,880.00$ 435 435 29,580.00$ 29,580.00$ 271.88% (18,700.00)$ 

Schedule I Totals

Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement

Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance
10" Water Main (PVC)
8" Water Main (PVC)
10" Gate Valve

Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC)
4" Irrigation Service Installation & Connection

4" Irrigation Service Lead (PVC)
2" Flushing Hydrant Installation & Connection (FHC)

10"x8" Tee

10" 22.5o Bend
10"x6" Reducer

1" Water Service Connection (WSC)

Exploratory Excavation
Traffic Control
Materials Testing Allowance
Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Schedule II (Lincoln Ave. - A) - *Base Bid

8" Gate Valve
6" Gate Valve
10"x10" Cross
10"x10" Tee

Connect to Existing Main (10")
Fire Hydrant Only

1" Curbstop
1" Service Pipe
Internal Water Service Connection (IWSC)
Tracer Wire
Temporary Water (Residential)

2" Flushing Hydrant Pipe (HDPE)
1 1/2" Water Service Connection (WSC)
1 1/2" Curbstop
1 1/2" Service Pipe

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

71

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

2030 500 SF 17.00$ 8,500.00$ 360 360 6,120.00$ 6,120.00$ 72.00% 2,380.00$ 

2031 660 SF 23.00$ 15,180.00$ 888 888 20,424.00$ 20,424.00$ 134.55% (5,244.00)$ 

2032 1700 SY 7.00$ 11,900.00$ 1319 1319 9,233.00$ 9,233.00$ 77.59% 2,667.00$ 

2033 825 SY 90.00$ 74,250.00$ 549 549 49,410.00$ 49,410.00$ 66.55% 24,840.00$ 

2034 875 SY 115.00$ 100,625.00$ 770 770 88,550.00$ 88,550.00$ 88.00% 12,075.00$ 

2035 6750 SF 2.00$ 13,500.00$ 6500 6500 13,000.00$ 13,000.00$ 96.30% 500.00$ 
2036 250 CY 36.00$ 9,000.00$ -$ -$ 9,000.00$ 

2037 100 CY 44.00$ 4,400.00$ -$ -$ 4,400.00$ 

2038 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 15 15 3,300.00$ 3,300.00$ 150.00% (1,100.00)$ 

2039 1 LS 13,377.00$ 13,377.00$ 1.00 1.00 13,377.00$ 13,377.00$ 100.00% -$ 
2040 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 2524.55 2524.55 2,524.55$ 2,524.55$ 100.98% (24.55)$ 
2041 5000 UNIT 1.00$ 5,000.00$ 9056.33 9056.33 9,056.33$ 9,056.33$ 181.13% (4,056.33)$ 

601,755.00$ 561,628.88$ 561,628.88$ 40,126.12$ 

3001 1 LS 27,448.00$ 27,448.00$ 1.00 1.00 27,448.00$ 27,448.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3002 1198 LF 100.00$ 119,800.00$ 1263 1263 126,300.00$ 126,300.00$ 105.43% (6,500.00)$ 

3003 52 LF 100.00$ 5,200.00$ -$ -$ 5,200.00$ 

3004 5 LF 130.00$ 650.00$ 5 5 650.00$ 650.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3005 3 EA 5,500.00$ 16,500.00$ 4 4 22,000.00$ 22,000.00$ 133.33% (5,500.00)$ 

3006 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ -$ -$ 4,500.00$ 

3007 1 EA 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 2 2 6,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 200.00% (3,000.00)$ 

3008 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ -$ -$ 3,100.00$ 

3009 2 EA 2,300.00$ 4,600.00$ 2 2 4,600.00$ 4,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 

3010 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1 1 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3011 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1 1 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3012 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 1 1 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3013 4 EA 9,600.00$ 38,400.00$ 4 4 38,400.00$ 38,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3014 58 LF 32.00$ 1,856.00$ 53 53 1,696.00$ 1,696.00$ 91.38% 160.00$ 
3015 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1 1 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3016 30 LF 17.00$ 510.00$ 28 28 476.00$ 476.00$ 93.33% 34.00$ 
3017 13 EA 1,500.00$ 19,500.00$ 14 14 21,000.00$ 21,000.00$ 107.69% (1,500.00)$ 

3018 4 EA 290.00$ 1,160.00$ 5 5 1,450.00$ 1,450.00$ 125.00% (290.00)$ 
3019 213 LF 6.00$ 1,278.00$ 247 247 1,482.00$ 1,482.00$ 115.96% (204.00)$ 
3020 1556 LF 1.00$ 1,556.00$ 1516 1516 1,516.00$ 1,516.00$ 97.43% 40.00$ 
3021 16 EA 980.00$ 15,680.00$ 1 1 980.00$ 980.00$ 6.25% 14,700.00$ 

2" Water Service Connection (WSC)

8" Gate Valve
10"x10" Tee

Temporary Water (Residential)

2" Service Pipe
1" Water Service Connection (WSC)
1" Curbstop
1" Service Pipe
Tracer Wire

6" Water Main (PVC)
10" Gate Valve

Traffic Control
Materials Testing Allowance
Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Connect to Existing Main (10")
Connect to Existing Main (6")
Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC)

Imported Backfill

Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement
Concrete Valley Gutter Removal & Replacement

Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4")

Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance
10" Water Main (PVC)
8" Water Main (PVC)

10"x8" Tee

10" 22.5o Bend
8"x6" Reducer

Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6")
Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed)

Type II Bedding
Exploratory Excavation

Schedule II Totals
Schedule III (Lincoln Ave. - B)

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

72

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

3022 1 EA 1,300.00$ 1,300.00$ 1 1 1,300.00$ 1,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3023 40 LF 11.00$ 440.00$ 50 50 550.00$ 550.00$ 125.00% (110.00)$ 
3024 80 LF 68.00$ 5,440.00$ 432 432 29,376.00$ 29,376.00$ 540.00% (23,936.00)$ 

3025 100 SF 17.00$ 1,700.00$ 130 130 2,210.00$ 2,210.00$ 130.00% (510.00)$ 
3026 265 SF 23.00$ 6,095.00$ 330 330 7,590.00$ 7,590.00$ 124.53% (1,495.00)$ 

3027 2035 SY 7.00$ 14,245.00$ 1745 1745 12,215.00$ 12,215.00$ 85.75% 2,030.00$ 

3028 2035 SY 115.00$ 234,025.00$ 1745 1745 200,675.00$ 200,675.00$ 85.75% 33,350.00$ 

3029 1600 SF 2.00$ 3,200.00$ 1600 1600 3,200.00$ 3,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3030 225 CY 36.00$ 8,100.00$ -$ -$ 8,100.00$ 

3031 90 CY 44.00$ 3,960.00$ -$ -$ 3,960.00$ 

3032 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 4 4 880.00$ 880.00$ 40.00% 1,320.00$ 

3033 1 LS 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 1.00 1.00 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
3034 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 1963.85 1963.85 1,963.85$ 1,963.85$ 78.55% 536.15$ 
3035 5000 UNIT 1.00$ 5,000.00$ -$ -$ 5,000.00$ 

570,843.00$ 531,857.85$ 531,857.85$ 38,985.15$ 

5001 1 LS 18,000.00$ 18,000.00$ 1.00 1.00 18,000.00$ 18,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5002 291 LF 110.00$ 32,010.00$ 291 291 32,010.00$ 32,010.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5003 87 LF 100.00$ 8,700.00$ 85 85 8,500.00$ 8,500.00$ 97.70% 200.00$ 
5004 1 EA 5,900.00$ 5,900.00$ 1 1 5,900.00$ 5,900.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5005 2 EA 6,200.00$ 12,400.00$ 2 2 12,400.00$ 12,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5006 1 EA 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 1 1 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5007 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1 1 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 

5008 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1 1 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 

5009 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1 1 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5010 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2 2 4,800.00$ 4,800.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5011 1 EA 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 1 1 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5012 32 LF 32.00$ 1,024.00$ 32 32 1,024.00$ 1,024.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5013 410 LF 1.00$ 410.00$ 417 417 417.00$ 417.00$ 101.71% (7.00)$ 
5014 10 LF 82.00$ 820.00$ 20 20 1,640.00$ 1,640.00$ 200.00% (820.00)$ 
5015 600 SY 7.00$ 4,200.00$ 251 251 1,757.00$ 1,757.00$ 41.83% 2,443.00$ 

5016 510 SY 90.00$ 45,900.00$ -$ -$ 45,900.00$ 

5017 90 SY 115.00$ 10,350.00$ 69 69 7,935.00$ 7,935.00$ 76.67% 2,415.00$ 

5018 200 SF 2.00$ 400.00$ 200 200 400.00$ 400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5019 125 CY 143.00$ 17,875.00$ 100 100 14,300.00$ 14,300.00$ 80.00% 3,575.00$ 

8" 22.5o Bend

8" 45o Bend
10"x8" Reducer
Connect to Existing Main (8")
Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC)

Schedule III Totals
Schedule V (Veteran's Park)

Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance
10" Water Main (PVC)
8" Water Main (PVC)
10" Gate Valve
8" Gate Valve
8"x8" Tee

Type II Bedding
Exploratory Excavation
Traffic Control
Materials Testing Allowance
Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Concrete Valley Gutter Removal & Replacement

Imported Backfill

Temporary Water (Commercial)
Asbestos Pipe Removal
Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement
Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement

Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6")
Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed)

Tracer Wire
Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement
Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4")
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6")
Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed)
Flowable Fill

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

73

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

5020 50 CY 36.00$ 1,800.00$ -$ -$ 1,800.00$ 

5021 20 CY 44.00$ 880.00$ -$ -$ 880.00$ 
5022 5 HR 220.00$ 1,100.00$ -$ -$ 1,100.00$ 

5023 1 LS 5,706.00$ 5,706.00$ 1.00 1.00 5,706.00$ 5,706.00$ 100.00% -$ 
5024 1000 UNIT 1.00$ 1,000.00$ 745.00 745.00 745.00$ 745.00$ 74.50% 255.00$ 
5025 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ -$ -$ 2,500.00$ 

195,475.00$ 135,234.00$ 135,234.00$ 60,241.00$ 

6001 1 LS 16,147.00$ 16,147.00$ 1.00 1.00 16,147.00$ 16,147.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6002 472 LF 100.00$ 47,200.00$ 463 463 46,300.00$ 46,300.00$ 98.09% 900.00$ 
6003 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1 1 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6004 2 EA 2,300.00$ 4,600.00$ 2 2 4,600.00$ 4,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 

6005 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1 1 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6006 1 EA 9,700.00$ 9,700.00$ 1 1 9,700.00$ 9,700.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6007 15 LF 32.00$ 480.00$ 15 15 480.00$ 480.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6008 487 LF 1.00$ 487.00$ 470 470 470.00$ 470.00$ 96.51% 17.00$ 
6009 30 LF 68.00$ 2,040.00$ 20 20 1,360.00$ 1,360.00$ 66.67% 680.00$ 
6010 100 SF 17.00$ 1,700.00$ 100 100 1,700.00$ 1,700.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6011 675 SY 7.00$ 4,725.00$ 635 635 4,445.00$ 4,445.00$ 94.07% 280.00$ 
6012 675 SY 90.00$ 60,750.00$ 635 635 57,150.00$ 57,150.00$ 94.07% 3,600.00$ 

6013 500 SF 2.00$ 1,000.00$ 100 100 200.00$ 200.00$ 20.00% 800.00$ 
6014 50 CY 36.00$ 1,800.00$ -$ -$ 1,800.00$ 

6015 20 CY 44.00$ 880.00$ -$ -$ 880.00$ 
6016 5 HR 220.00$ 1,100.00$ -$ -$ 1,100.00$ 

6017 1 LS 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1.00 1.00 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
6018 1000 UNIT 1.00$ 1,000.00$ -$ -$ 1,000.00$ 

6019 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ -$ -$ 2,500.00$ 

162,909.00$ 149,352.00$ 149,352.00$ 13,557.00$ 

Imported Backfill
Type II Bedding
Exploratory Excavation
Traffic Control
Materials Testing Allowance
Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Schedule V Totals
Schedule VI (Crestwood)

Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance
8" Water Main (PVC)
8"x8" Tee

Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed)
Imported Backfill
Type II Bedding
Exploratory Excavation
Traffic Control
Materials Testing Allowance
Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Schedule VI Totals

8" 45o Bend
Connect to Existing Main (8")
Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC)
Tracer Wire
Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement
Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement

Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4")

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

74

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

1,378,324.00$ 1,275,505.55$ 1,275,505.55$ 92.54% 102,818.45$ 

601,755.00$ 561,628.88$ 561,628.88$ 93.33% 40,126.12$ 

570,843.00$ 531,857.85$ 531,857.85$ 93.17% 38,985.15$ 

195,475.00$ 135,234.00$ 135,234.00$ 69.18% 60,241.00$ 

162,909.00$ 149,352.00$ 149,352.00$ 91.68% 13,557.00$ 

2,909,306.00$ 2,653,578.28$ 2,653,578.28$ 91.21% 255,727.72$ 

4001 1 LS 11,580.00$ 11,580.00$ 1.00 1.00 11,580.00$ 11,580.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4002 451 LF 110.00$ 49,610.00$ 448 448 49,280.00$ 49,280.00$ 99.33% 330.00$ 
4003 158 LF 400.00$ 63,200.00$ 188 188 75,200.00$ 75,200.00$ 118.99% (12,000.00)$ 

4004 35 LF 80.00$ 2,800.00$ 16 16 1,280.00$ 1,280.00$ 45.71% 1,520.00$ 

4005 3 EA 5,200.00$ 15,600.00$ 4 4 20,800.00$ 20,800.00$ 133.33% (5,200.00)$ 

4006 2 EA 3,300.00$ 6,600.00$ -$ -$ 6,600.00$ 

4007 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ -$ -$ 3,100.00$ 

4008 1 EA 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 1 1 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4009 2 EA 2,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 2 2 4,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4010 3 EA 2,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 2 2 4,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 66.67% 2,000.00$ 

4011 1 EA 1,700.00$ 1,700.00$ -$ -$ 1,700.00$ 

4012 3 EA 2,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 1 1 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 33.33% 4,000.00$ 

4013 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 1 1 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4014 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ -$ -$ 1,600.00$ 

4015 1 EA 5,500.00$ 5,500.00$ -$ -$ 5,500.00$ 

4016 2 EA 9,600.00$ 19,200.00$ 3 3 28,800.00$ 28,800.00$ 150.00% (9,600.00)$ 

4017 30 LF 32.00$ 960.00$ 40 40 1,280.00$ 1,280.00$ 133.33% (320.00)$ 
4018 4 EA 1,600.00$ 6,400.00$ 5 5 8,000.00$ 8,000.00$ 125.00% (1,600.00)$ 

4019 4 EA 290.00$ 1,160.00$ 5 5 1,450.00$ 1,450.00$ 125.00% (290.00)$ 
4020 209 LF 6.00$ 1,254.00$ 275 275 1,650.00$ 1,650.00$ 131.58% (396.00)$ 
4021 1 EA 1,400.00$ 1,400.00$ 2 2 2,800.00$ 2,800.00$ 200.00% (1,400.00)$ 

4022 883 LF 1.00$ 883.00$ 1005 1005 1,005.00$ 1,005.00$ 113.82% (122.00)$ 

Original Contract Totals

Change Order #1 - Schedule IV (Peterson Park Crossing)
Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance

Change Orders

Summary Table
Schedule I (Central Ave.) - *Base Bid
Schedule II (Lincoln Ave. - A) - *Base Bid
Schedule III (Lincoln Ave. - B)
Schedule V (Veteran's Park)
Schedule VI (Crestwood)

Fire Hydrant Assembly
6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC)
1" Water Service Connection (WSC)
1" Curbstop
1" Service Pipe
Internal Water Service Connection (IWSC)
Tracer Wire

10" Water Main (PVC)
10" Water Main (HDPE-HDD Installation)
6" Water Main (PVC)
10" Gate Valve
6" Gate Valve
10"x10" Cross
10"x10" Tee
10" 22.5° Bend
10" 45° Bend
6" 90° Bend
10"x6" Reducer
Connect to Existing Main (6")
Connect to Existing Fire Service (6")
Fire Hydrant Only

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

75

Item b.



Project:
Contract:

7-FINAL From To 1/11/2024

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Value of Work 
Completed to 

Date (E*I)
($)

% of Value 
of Item
(L / F)

Work Completed 
and Materials 
Stored to Date 

(J+K)
($)

Balance to 
Finish
(F - L)

($)

Work Completed
Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
This Period

Materials 
Currently 
Stored

(not in G or H)
($)

Estimated 
Quantity 

Incorporated 
Previously

Application Period:

B
Contract Information

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                Contractor’s Application for Payment

Engineer: Engineer's Project Number:
Contractor's Project Number:

Owner:

Contractor:

S2100105Owner's Project Number:
S2100105

23101COP Construction LLC

City of Sidney
Interstate Engineering, Inc.

Item 
Quantity Units

Unit Price
($)

Value of bid 
Item (CxE)

($) Description
Bid Item 

No.

Original Contract

Application No.: Application Date:

Phase III - Water System Improvements
Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

12/31/202310/29/2023

4023 1 EA 4,300.00$ 4,300.00$ 1 1 4,300.00$ 4,300.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4024 2 EA 980.00$ 1,960.00$ 2 2 1,960.00$ 1,960.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4025 2 EA 1,300.00$ 2,600.00$ 1 1 1,300.00$ 1,300.00$ 50.00% 1,300.00$ 

4026 20 LF 80.00$ 1,600.00$ -$ -$ 1,600.00$ 

4027 50 SF 20.00$ 1,000.00$ 37 37 740.00$ 740.00$ 74.00% 260.00$ 
4028 540 SY 7.00$ 3,780.00$ 413 413 2,891.00$ 2,891.00$ 76.48% 889.00$ 
4029 540 SY 90.00$ 48,600.00$ 413 413 37,170.00$ 37,170.00$ 76.48% 11,430.00$ 

4030 260 SY 22.00$ 5,720.00$ 260 260 5,720.00$ 5,720.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4031 1600 SF 2.00$ 3,200.00$ 1600 1600 3,200.00$ 3,200.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4032 60 CY 36.00$ 2,160.00$ -$ -$ 2,160.00$ 

4033 40 CY 44.00$ 1,760.00$ -$ -$ 1,760.00$ 

4034 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 8 8 1,760.00$ 1,760.00$ 80.00% 440.00$ 
4035 1 LS 620.00$ 620.00$ 1.00 1.00 620.00$ 620.00$ 100.00% -$ 
4036 1500 UNIT 1.00$ 1,500.00$ -$ -$ 1,500.00$ 

4037 3500 UNIT 1.00$ 3,500.00$ 11003.03 11003.03 11,003.03$ 11,003.03$ 314.37% (7,503.03)$ 

297,347.00$ 288,089.03$ 288,089.03$ 9,257.97$ 

1 LS (264,985.69)$  (264,985.69)$ 
(264,985.69)$ 

2,941,667.31$ 2,941,667.31$ -$ 2,941,667.31$ 100.00% -$ 

Change Order #2 - Balancing Change Order

CO#2 - Balancing Change Order
Balancing Change Order 

Project Totals

CO#1 - Schedule IV (Peterson Park Crossing)

Total Contract Including Change Orders

Materials Testing Allowance

Imported Backfill
Type II Bedding

8" Sewer Lamphole
Temporary Water (Residential)

Miscellaneous Work Allowance

Exploratory Excavation
Traffic Control

Temporary Water (Commercial)
Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement
Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement

Asphalt Removal
Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4")
Gravel Restoration
Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed)

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

76

Item b.



7-FINAL Application Period: From 10/29/2023 To 12/31/2023 1/11/2024

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

6855829 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 18,752.00$     $          -    $   18,752.00  $   18,752.00  $                -    $   18,752.00  $                -   
6858376 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 62,578.66$     $          -    $   62,578.66  $   62,578.66  $                -    $   62,578.66  $                -   
6858444 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 42,647.56$     $          -    $   42,647.56  $   42,647.56  $                -    $   42,647.56  $                -   
6860190 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 15,649.16$     $          -    $   15,649.16  $   15,649.16  $                -    $   15,649.16  $                -   
6865878 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 105,428.00$   $          -    $ 105,428.00  $ 105,428.00  $                -    $ 105,428.00  $                -   
6892948 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 36,683.47$     $          -    $   36,683.47  $   36,683.47  $                -    $   36,683.47  $                -   
6893057 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 15,164.99$     $          -    $   15,164.99  $   15,164.99  $                -    $   15,164.99  $                -   

6893057-1 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 1,770.03$       $          -    $     1,770.03  $     1,770.03  $                -    $     1,770.03  $                -   
6094607 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 3,187.87$       $          -    $     3,187.87  $     3,187.87  $                -    $     3,187.87  $                -   
6900704 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 6,595.87$       $          -    $     6,595.87  $     6,595.87  $                -    $     6,595.87  $                -   
690607-3 DIV 33 Northwest Pipe Fitting Pay App #1 2,176.05$       $          -    $     2,176.05  $     2,176.05  $                -    $     2,176.05  $                -   

 $          -    $ 310,633.66  $ 310,633.66  $                -    $ 310,633.66  $                -   

20%
100%

Totals  $          -    $ 310,633.66  $ 310,633.66  $ 310,633.66  $                -   

Subtotal:

Percent of Water Main Installed this Period

Length of Water Main Installed this Period
Length of Water Main Installed to Date

Total Length of Water Main

Percent Complete of Water Main Installation

Total Amount 
Incorporated in the 

Work (J+K) ($)

Materials 
Remaining in 
Storage (I-L) 

($)

Application Date:

Project: Phase III - Water System Improvements
Contract: Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3

Description of Materials 
or Equipment Stored

Contractor: COP Construction LLC Contractor's Project Number: 23101

Owner's Project Number: S2100105
Engineer: Interstate Engineering, Inc. Engineer's Project Number: S2100105

Stored Materials Summary                                                                                                                                                                                       Contractor's Application for Payment

Application No.:

Owner: City of Sidney

Storage Location

Application No. 
When Materials 

Placed in 
Storage

Materials Stored

Previous Amount 
Stored ($)

Amount 
Stored this 
Period ($)

Amount Stored 
to Date (G+H) ($)

Incorporated in Work

Amount Previously 
Incorporated in the 

Work ($)

Amount Incorporated 
in the Work this 

Period ($)

Supplier 
Invoice No.

Submittal No. 
(with 

Specification 
Section No.)

Bid 
Item 
No.

Stored Materials
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

77

Item b.



CGR-1
V2 1/2010

1. Contract Awarded by:

Government Entity
Federal Identification Number (FEIN):
Name:
Address:
City: State: Zip Code:

2. Contract Awarded to:

Prime Contractor Sub-Contractor
Federal Identification Number (FEIN):
Name:
Address:
City: State: Zip Code:

3. 3. S2100105
4. 4. 2/21/2023
5. 5. Oct-23
6. 6. $2,909,306.00
7.

8.

Government Entity

Preparer's Signature:
Preparer's Title:
Telephone Phone: Fax Number:

Please mail this registration to:
Department of Revenue, P.O. Box 5835, Helena, MT  59604-5835

Date:

Schedules I, II, III, V, VI and CO#1 (Add Sch IV), CO#2, CO#3
Enter the location in Montana where this work is performed.  Be specific with your description.

Contract award registration submitted by:  Select the appropriate box identifying which entity is completing this return; 
sign this return and enter the information requested below.

Prime Contractor Sub-Contractor

Enter a description of work to be performed under this contract.
Phase III - Water System Improvements

COP Construction LLC

Enter the total dollar amount of the contract here……………………………………..…………
Enter the estimated construction completion date here..………………………………………
Enter the contract award date here………………………………………………………………

the "Subcontractor" box if you are registering this contract between a prime contractor and a subcontractor.

1% Contractor's Gross Receipts

Form CGR-1 is required to be completed and mailed to the Department of Revenue within 10 days after a contract or bid

Enter the Government Issued Purchase Order Number here…………………………………

Contract Award Registration

City of Sidney

Enter the federal employer identification number, business name and address.  Place an "X" in

the "Prime Contractor" box if you are registering this contract between a government entity and a prime contractor.  Place an "X" in

is officially awarded.
Enter the federal employer identification number, business name and address. Place an "X" in

"Government Entity" box if you are registering this contract between a government entity and a prime contractor.  Place an "X" in

the "Prime Contractor" box if you are registering this contract between a prime contractor and a subcontractor.

Prime Contractor

For Information Only
Owner must

e-file at http://tap.dor.mt.gov.

78

Item b.



79

Item c.



S2100105 Sidney Phase III - Water System Improvements 1/8/2024

ITEM
NO

DESCRIPTION OF WORK Bid Quantity
Unit of 

Measure
Unit
Price

Contract
Amount

Estimated 
Quantity 
Installed

$ Amount To 
Date

Estimated 
Quantity 

Adjustment

$ Amount 
Adjustment

Schedule I (Central Ave.) - Base Bid
1001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 138,230.00$ 138,230.00$ 1 138,230.00$      -                  -$                   

1002 12" Water Main (DIP) 880 LF 170.00$ 149,600.00$ 878 149,260.00$      (2)                (340.00)$            

1003 8" Water Main (DIP) 85 LF 140.00$ 11,900.00$ 66 9,240.00$          (19)              (2,660.00)$         

1004 12" Gate Valve 6 EA 8,400.00$ 50,400.00$ 6 50,400.00$        -                  -$                   

1005 8" Gate Valve 1 EA 6,200.00$ 6,200.00$ 1 6,200.00$          -                  -$                   

1006 12"x12" Cross 1 EA 4,600.00$ 4,600.00$ 1 4,600.00$          -                  -$                   

1007 12"x12" Tee 1 EA 4,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 1 4,000.00$          -                  -$                   

1008 12"x8" Tee 1 EA 3,500.00$ 3,500.00$ 1 3,500.00$          -                  -$                   

1009 12" 22.5o Bend 1 EA 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 1 3,000.00$          -                  -$                   

1010 12"x8" Reducer 1 EA 2,800.00$ 2,800.00$ 1 2,800.00$          -                  -$                   

1011 Connect to Existing Main (12") 4 EA 2,900.00$ 11,600.00$ 4 11,600.00$        -                  -$                   

1012 Connect to Existing Main (8") 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2 4,800.00$          -                  -$                   

1013 Fire Hydrant Assembly 3 EA 15,000.00$ 45,000.00$ 3 45,000.00$        -                  -$                   

1014 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (DIP) 94 LF 63.00$ 5,922.00$ 94 5,922.00$          -                  -$                   

1015 2" Water Service Connection (WSC) 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 1 4,500.00$          -                  -$                   

1016 2" Curbstop 1 EA 880.00$ 880.00$ 1 880.00$             -                  -$                   

1017 2" Service Pipe (Copper) 43 LF 65.00$ 2,795.00$ 65 4,225.00$          22               1,430.00$          

1018 1 1/2" Water Service Connection (WSC) 1 EA 4,400.00$ 4,400.00$ 1 4,400.00$          -                  -$                   

1019 1 1/2" Curbstop 1 EA 740.00$ 740.00$ 1 740.00$             -                  -$                   

1020 1 1/2" Service Pipe (Copper) 43 LF 36.00$ 1,548.00$ 43 1,548.00$          -                  -$                   

1021 1" Water Service Connection (WSC) 5 EA 1,100.00$ 5,500.00$ 6 6,600.00$          1                 1,100.00$          

1022 1" Curbstop 4 EA 500.00$ 2,000.00$ 6 3,000.00$          2                 1,000.00$          

1023 1" Service Pipe (Copper) 114 LF 20.00$ 2,280.00$ 183 3,660.00$          69               1,380.00$          

1024 Tracer Wire 1259 LF 1.00$ 1,259.00$ 1359 1,359.00$          100             100.00$             

1025 Temporary Water (Residential) 2 EA 1,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 7 7,000.00$          5                 5,000.00$          

1026 Temporary Water (Commercial) 7 EA 1,300.00$ 9,100.00$ 3 3,900.00$          (4)                (5,200.00)$         

1027 Asbestos Pipe Removal 375 LF 11.00$ 4,125.00$ 500 5,500.00$          125             1,375.00$          

1028 Contaiminated Soil Removal & Disposal 1 LS 263,000.00$ 263,000.00$ 1 263,000.00$      -                  -$                   

1029 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 90 LF 68.00$ 6,120.00$ 120 8,160.00$          30               2,040.00$          

1030 Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement 1100 SF 17.00$ 18,700.00$ 828 14,076.00$        (272)            (4,624.00)$         

1031 Asphalt Removal 1475 SY 15.00$ 22,125.00$ 1501 22,515.00$        26               390.00$             

1032 Asphalt Replacement (MDT ROW: 6") 1475 SY 115.00$ 169,625.00$ 1501 172,615.00$      26               2,990.00$          

1033 Flowable Fill 2550 CY 143.00$ 364,650.00$ 1662 237,666.00$      (888)            (126,984.00)$     

1034 Type II Bedding 75 CY 83.00$ 6,225.00$ 0 -$                   (75)              (6,225.00)$         

1035 Exploratory Excavation 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 3 660.00$             (7)                (1,540.00)$         

1036 Traffic Control 1 LS 33,000.00$ 33,000.00$ 1 33,000.00$        -                  -$                   

1037 Materials Testing Allowance 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 2415.00 2,415.00$          (85.00)         (85.00)$              

1038 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 7500 UNIT 1.00$ 7,500.00$ 35534.55 35,534.55$        28,034.55   28,034.55$        

Schedule II (Lincoln Ave. - A) - Base Bid
2001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 66,200.00$ 66,200.00$ 1 66,200.00$        -                  -$                   

2002 10" Water Main (PVC) 967 LF 100.00$ 96,700.00$ 953 95,300.00$        (14)              (1,400.00)$         

2003 8" Water Main (PVC) 53 LF 100.00$ 5,300.00$ 53 5,300.00$          -                  -$                   

2004 10" Gate Valve 4 EA 5,800.00$ 23,200.00$ 4 23,200.00$        -                  -$                   

2005 8" Gate Valve 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 1 4,500.00$          -                  -$                   

2006 6" Gate Valve 1 EA 3,300.00$ 3,300.00$ 1 3,300.00$          -                  -$                   

2007 10"x10" Cross 1 EA 3,250.00$ 3,250.00$ 1 3,250.00$          -                  -$                   

2008 10"x10" Tee 2 EA 3,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 2 6,000.00$          -                  -$                   

2009 10"x8" Tee 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ 1 3,100.00$          -                  -$                   

2010 10" 22.5o Bend 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1 2,400.00$          -                  -$                   

2011 10"x6" Reducer 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1 2,000.00$          -                  -$                   

2012 Connect to Existing Main (10") 4 EA 2,300.00$ 9,200.00$ 4 9,200.00$          -                  -$                   

2013 Fire Hydrant Only 1 EA 6,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 1 6,000.00$          -                  -$                   

2014 Fire Hydrant Assembly 3 EA 9,800.00$ 29,400.00$ 3 29,400.00$        -                  -$                   

2015 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC) 110 LF 32.00$ 3,520.00$ 111 3,552.00$          1                 32.00$               

2016 4" Irrigation Service Installation & Connection 1 LS 6,600.00$ 6,600.00$ 1 6,600.00$          -                  -$                   

2017 4" Irrigation Service Lead (PVC) 30 LF 18.00$ 540.00$ 30 540.00$             -                  -$                   

2018 2" Flushing Hydrant Installation & Connection (FHC) 1 LS 7,800.00$ 7,800.00$ 1 7,800.00$          -                  -$                   

2019 2" Flushing Hydrant Pipe (HDPE) 196 LF 7.00$ 1,372.00$ 216 1,512.00$          20               140.00$             

2020 1 1/2" Water Service Connection (WSC) 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2 4,800.00$          -                  -$                   

2021 1 1/2" Curbstop 2 EA 680.00$ 1,360.00$ 2 1,360.00$          -                  -$                   

2022 1 1/2" Service Pipe 146 LF 7.00$ 1,022.00$ 163 1,141.00$          17               119.00$             

2023 1" Water Service Connection (WSC) 9 EA 2,200.00$ 19,800.00$ 9 19,800.00$        -                  -$                   

2024 1" Curbstop 9 EA 390.00$ 3,510.00$ 9 3,510.00$          -                  -$                   

2025 1" Service Pipe 381 LF 6.00$ 2,286.00$ 392 2,352.00$          11               66.00$               

2026 Internal Water Service Connection (IWSC) 1 EA 1,400.00$ 1,400.00$ 0 -$                   (1)                (1,400.00)$         

2027 Tracer Wire 1883 LF 1.00$ 1,883.00$ 1937 1,937.00$          54               54.00$               

2028 Temporary Water (Residential) 14 EA 1,000.00$ 14,000.00$ 3 3,000.00$          (11)              (11,000.00)$       

2029 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 160 LF 68.00$ 10,880.00$ 435 29,580.00$        275             18,700.00$        

2030 Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement 500 SF 17.00$ 8,500.00$ 360 6,120.00$          (140)            (2,380.00)$         

2031 Concrete Valley Gutter Removal & Replacement 660 SF 23.00$ 15,180.00$ 888 20,424.00$        228             5,244.00$          

2032 Asphalt Removal 1700 SY 7.00$ 11,900.00$ 1319 9,233.00$          (381)            (2,667.00)$         

2033 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4") 825 SY 90.00$ 74,250.00$ 549 49,410.00$        (276)            (24,840.00)$       

2034 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6") 875 SY 115.00$ 100,625.00$ 770 88,550.00$        (105)            (12,075.00)$       

2035 Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed) 6750 SF 2.00$ 13,500.00$ 6500 13,000.00$        (250)            (500.00)$            

2036 Imported Backfill 250 CY 36.00$ 9,000.00$ 0 -$                   (250)            (9,000.00)$         

2037 Type II Bedding 100 CY 44.00$ 4,400.00$ 0 -$                   (100)            (4,400.00)$         

2038 Exploratory Excavation 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 15 3,300.00$          5                 1,100.00$          

2039 Traffic Control 1 LS 13,377.00$ 13,377.00$ 1 13,377.00$        -                  -$                   

2040 Materials Testing Allowance 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 2524.55 2,524.55$          25               24.55$               

2041 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 5000 UNIT 1.00$ 5,000.00$ 9056.33 9,056.33$          4,056          4,056.33$          

Balancing Change Order - Item List

80

Item c.



S2100105 Sidney Phase III - Water System Improvements 1/8/2024

Schedule III (Lincoln Ave. - B)
3001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 27,448.00$ 27,448.00$ 1.00 27,448.00$        -                  -$                   

3002 10" Water Main (PVC) 1198 LF 100.00$ 119,800.00$ 1263.00 126,300.00$      65               6,500.00$          

3003 8" Water Main (PVC) 52 LF 100.00$ 5,200.00$ 0.00 -$                   (52)              (5,200.00)$         

3004 6" Water Main (PVC) 5 LF 130.00$ 650.00$ 5.00 650.00$             -                  -$                   

3005 10" Gate Valve 3 EA 5,500.00$ 16,500.00$ 4.00 22,000.00$        1                 5,500.00$          

3006 8" Gate Valve 1 EA 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (4,500.00)$         

3007 10"x10" Tee 1 EA 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 2.00 6,000.00$          1                 3,000.00$          

3008 10"x8" Tee 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (3,100.00)$         

3009 10" 22.5o Bend 2 EA 2,300.00$ 4,600.00$ 2.00 4,600.00$          -                  -$                   

3010 8"x6" Reducer 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1.00 2,000.00$          -                  -$                   

3011 Connect to Existing Main (10") 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1.00 2,300.00$          -                  -$                   

3012 Connect to Existing Main (6") 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 1.00 1,600.00$          -                  -$                   

3013 Fire Hydrant Assembly 4 EA 9,600.00$ 38,400.00$ 4.00 38,400.00$        -                  -$                   

3014 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC) 58 LF 32.00$ 1,856.00$ 53.00 1,696.00$          (5)                (160.00)$            

3015 2" Water Service Connection (WSC) 1 EA 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1.00 2,000.00$          -                  -$                   

3016 2" Service Pipe 30 LF 17.00$ 510.00$ 28.00 476.00$             (2)                (34.00)$              

3017 1" Water Service Connection (WSC) 13 EA 1,500.00$ 19,500.00$ 14.00 21,000.00$        1                 1,500.00$          

3018 1" Curbstop 4 EA 290.00$ 1,160.00$ 5.00 1,450.00$          1                 290.00$             

3019 1" Service Pipe 213 LF 6.00$ 1,278.00$ 247.00 1,482.00$          34               204.00$             

3020 Tracer Wire 1556 LF 1.00$ 1,556.00$ 1516.00 1,516.00$          (40)              (40.00)$              

3021 Temporary Water (Residential) 16 EA 980.00$ 15,680.00$ 1.00 980.00$             (15)              (14,700.00)$       

3022 Temporary Water (Commercial) 1 EA 1,300.00$ 1,300.00$ 1.00 1,300.00$          -                  -$                   

3023 Asbestos Pipe Removal 40 LF 11.00$ 440.00$ 50.00 550.00$             10               110.00$             

3024 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 80 LF 68.00$ 5,440.00$ 432.00 29,376.00$        352             23,936.00$        

3025 Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement 100 SF 17.00$ 1,700.00$ 130.00 2,210.00$          30               510.00$             

3026 Concrete Valley Gutter Removal & Replacement 265 SF 23.00$ 6,095.00$ 330.00 7,590.00$          65               1,495.00$          

3027 Asphalt Removal 2035 SY 7.00$ 14,245.00$ 1745.00 12,215.00$        (290)            (2,030.00)$         

3028 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6") 2035 SY 115.00$ 234,025.00$ 1745.00 200,675.00$      (290)            (33,350.00)$       

3029 Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed) 1600 SF 2.00$ 3,200.00$ 1600.00 3,200.00$          -                  -$                   

3030 Imported Backfill 225 CY 36.00$ 8,100.00$ 0.00 -$                   (225)            (8,100.00)$         

3031 Type II Bedding 90 CY 44.00$ 3,960.00$ 0.00 -$                   (90)              (3,960.00)$         

3032 Exploratory Excavation 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 4.00 880.00$             (6)                (1,320.00)$         

3033 Traffic Control 1 LS 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 1.00 10,000.00$        -                  -$                   

3034 Materials Testing Allowance 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 1963.85 1,963.85$          (536)            (536.15)$            

3035 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 5000 UNIT 1.00$ 5,000.00$ 0.00 -$                   (5,000)         (5,000.00)$         

Schedule IV (Peterson Park Crossing) - Change Order #1
4001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 11,580.00$ 11,580.00$ 1.00 11,580.00$        -                  -$                   

4002 10" Water Main (PVC) 451 LF 110.00$ 49,610.00$ 448.00 49,280.00$        (3)                (330.00)$            

4003 10" Water Main (HDPE-HDD Installation) 158 LF 400.00$ 63,200.00$ 188.00 75,200.00$        30               12,000.00$        

4004 6" Water Main (PVC) 35 LF 80.00$ 2,800.00$ 16.00 1,280.00$          (19)              (1,520.00)$         

4005 10" Gate Valve 3 EA 5,200.00$ 15,600.00$ 4.00 20,800.00$        1                 5,200.00$          

4006 6" Gate Valve 2 EA 3,300.00$ 6,600.00$ 0.00 -$                   (2)                (6,600.00)$         

4007 10"x10" Cross 1 EA 3,100.00$ 3,100.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (3,100.00)$         

4008 10"x10" Tee 1 EA 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 1.00 2,700.00$          -                  -$                   

4009 10" 22.5° Bend 2 EA 2,000.00$ 4,000.00$ 2.00 4,000.00$          -                  -$                   

4010 10" 45° Bend 3 EA 2,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 2.00 4,000.00$          (1)                (2,000.00)$         

4011 6" 90° Bend 1 EA 1,700.00$ 1,700.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (1,700.00)$         

4012 10"x6" Reducer 3 EA 2,000.00$ 6,000.00$ 1.00 2,000.00$          (2)                (4,000.00)$         

4013 Connect to Existing Main (6") 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 1.00 1,600.00$          -                  -$                   

4014 Connect to Existing Fire Service (6") 1 EA 1,600.00$ 1,600.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (1,600.00)$         

4015 Fire Hydrant Only 1 EA 5,500.00$ 5,500.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1)                (5,500.00)$         

4016 Fire Hydrant Assembly 2 EA 9,600.00$ 19,200.00$ 3.00 28,800.00$        1                 9,600.00$          

4017 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC) 30 LF 32.00$ 960.00$ 40.00 1,280.00$          10               320.00$             

4018 1" Water Service Connection (WSC) 4 EA 1,600.00$ 6,400.00$ 5.00 8,000.00$          1                 1,600.00$          

4019 1" Curbstop 4 EA 290.00$ 1,160.00$ 5.00 1,450.00$          1                 290.00$             

4020 1" Service Pipe 209 LF 6.00$ 1,254.00$ 275.00 1,650.00$          66               396.00$             

4021 Internal Water Service Connection (IWSC) 1 EA 1,400.00$ 1,400.00$ 2.00 2,800.00$          1                 1,400.00$          

4022 Tracer Wire 883 LF 1.00$ 883.00$ 1005.00 1,005.00$          122             122.00$             

4023 8" Sewer Lamphole 1 EA 4,300.00$ 4,300.00$ 1.00 4,300.00$          -                  -$                   

4024 Temporary Water (Residential) 2 EA 980.00$ 1,960.00$ 2.00 1,960.00$          -                  -$                   

4025 Temporary Water (Commercial) 2 EA 1,300.00$ 2,600.00$ 1.00 1,300.00$          (1)                (1,300.00)$         

4026 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 20 LF 80.00$ 1,600.00$ 0.00 -$                   (20)              (1,600.00)$         

4027 Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement 50 SF 20.00$ 1,000.00$ 37.00 740.00$             (13)              (260.00)$            

4028 Asphalt Removal 540 SY 7.00$ 3,780.00$ 413.00 2,891.00$          (127)            (889.00)$            

4029 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4") 540 SY 90.00$ 48,600.00$ 413.00 37,170.00$        (127)            (11,430.00)$       

4030 Gravel Restoration 260 SY 22.00$ 5,720.00$ 260.00 5,720.00$          -                  -$                   

4031 Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed) 1600 SF 2.00$ 3,200.00$ 1600.00 3,200.00$          -                  -$                   

4032 Imported Backfill 60 CY 36.00$ 2,160.00$ 0.00 -$                   (60)              (2,160.00)$         

4033 Type II Bedding 40 CY 44.00$ 1,760.00$ 0.00 -$                   (40)              (1,760.00)$         

4034 Exploratory Excavation 10 HR 220.00$ 2,200.00$ 8.00 1,760.00$          (2)                (440.00)$            

4035 Traffic Control 1 LS 620.00$ 620.00$ 1.00 620.00$             -                  -$                   

4036 Materials Testing Allowance 1500 UNIT 1.00$ 1,500.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1,500)         (1,500.00)$         

4037 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 3500 UNIT 1.00$ 3,500.00$ 11003.03 11,003.03$        7,503          7,503.03$          

Schedule V (Veteran's Park)
5001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 18,000.00$ 18,000.00$ 1.00 18,000.00$        -                  -$                   

5002 10" Water Main (PVC) 291 LF 110.00$ 32,010.00$ 291.00 32,010.00$        -                  -$                   

5003 8" Water Main (PVC) 87 LF 100.00$ 8,700.00$ 85.00 8,500.00$          (2)                (200.00)$            

5004 10" Gate Valve 1 EA 5,900.00$ 5,900.00$ 1.00 5,900.00$          -                  -$                   

5005 8" Gate Valve 2 EA 6,200.00$ 12,400.00$ 2.00 12,400.00$        -                  -$                   

5006 8"x8" Tee 1 EA 2,700.00$ 2,700.00$ 1.00 2,700.00$          -                  -$                   

5007 8" 22.5o Bend 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1.00 2,300.00$          -                  -$                   

5008 8" 45o Bend 1 EA 2,300.00$ 2,300.00$ 1.00 2,300.00$          -                  -$                   

5009 10"x8" Reducer 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1.00 2,400.00$          -                  -$                   

81

Item c.



S2100105 Sidney Phase III - Water System Improvements 1/8/2024

5010 Connect to Existing Main (8") 2 EA 2,400.00$ 4,800.00$ 2.00 4,800.00$          -                  -$                   

5011 Fire Hydrant Assembly 1 EA 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 1.00 10,000.00$        -                  -$                   

5012 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC) 32 LF 32.00$ 1,024.00$ 32.00 1,024.00$          -                  -$                   

5013 Tracer Wire 410 LF 1.00$ 410.00$ 417.00 417.00$             7                 7.00$                 

5014 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 10 LF 82.00$ 820.00$ 20.00 1,640.00$          10               820.00$             

5015 Asphalt Removal 600 SY 7.00$ 4,200.00$ 251.00 1,757.00$          (349)            (2,443.00)$         

5016 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4") 510 SY 90.00$ 45,900.00$ 0.00 -$                   (510)            (45,900.00)$       

5017 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 6") 90 SY 115.00$ 10,350.00$ 69.00 7,935.00$          (21)              (2,415.00)$         

5018 Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed) 200 SF 2.00$ 400.00$ 200.00 400.00$             -                  -$                   

5019 Flowable Fill 125 CY 143.00$ 17,875.00$ 100.00 14,300.00$        (25)              (3,575.00)$         

5020 Imported Backfill 50 CY 36.00$ 1,800.00$ 0.00 -$                   (50)              (1,800.00)$         

5021 Type II Bedding 20 CY 44.00$ 880.00$ 0.00 -$                   (20)              (880.00)$            

5022 Exploratory Excavation 5 HR 220.00$ 1,100.00$ 0.00 -$                   (5)                (1,100.00)$         

5023 Traffic Control 1 LS 5,706.00$ 5,706.00$ 1.00 5,706.00$          -                  -$                   

5024 Materials Testing Allowance 1000 UNIT 1.00$ 1,000.00$ 745.00 745.00$             (255)            (255.00)$            

5025 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ 0.00 -$                   (2,500)         (2,500.00)$         

Schedule VI (Crestwood)
6001 Mobilization, Taxes, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS 16,147.00$ 16,147.00$ 1.00 16,147.00$        -                  -$                   

6002 8" Water Main (PVC) 472 LF 100.00$ 47,200.00$ 463.00 46,300.00$        (9)                (900.00)$            

6003 8"x8" Tee 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1.00 2,400.00$          -                  -$                   

6004 8" 45o Bend 2 EA 2,300.00$ 4,600.00$ 2.00 4,600.00$          -                  -$                   

6005 Connect to Existing Main (8") 1 EA 2,400.00$ 2,400.00$ 1.00 2,400.00$          -                  -$                   

6006 Fire Hydrant Assembly 1 EA 9,700.00$ 9,700.00$ 1.00 9,700.00$          -                  -$                   

6007 6" Fire Hydrant Lead (PVC) 15 LF 32.00$ 480.00$ 15.00 480.00$             -                  -$                   

6008 Tracer Wire 487 LF 1.00$ 487.00$ 470.00 470.00$             (17)              (17.00)$              

6009 Curb & Gutter Removal & Replacement 30 LF 68.00$ 2,040.00$ 20.00 1,360.00$          (10)              (680.00)$            

6010 Concrete Sidewalk Removal & Replacement 100 SF 17.00$ 1,700.00$ 100.00 1,700.00$          -                  -$                   

6011 Asphalt Removal 675 SY 7.00$ 4,725.00$ 635.00 4,445.00$          (40)              (280.00)$            

6012 Asphalt Replacement (City ROW: 4") 675 SY 90.00$ 60,750.00$ 635.00 57,150.00$        (40)              (3,600.00)$         

6013 Grass Restoration (Hydro Seed) 500 SF 2.00$ 1,000.00$ 100.00 200.00$             (400)            (800.00)$            

6014 Imported Backfill 50 CY 36.00$ 1,800.00$ 0.00 -$                   (50)              (1,800.00)$         

6015 Type II Bedding 20 CY 44.00$ 880.00$ 0.00 -$                   (20)              (880.00)$            

6016 Exploratory Excavation 5 HR 220.00$ 1,100.00$ 0.00 -$                   (5)                (1,100.00)$         

6017 Traffic Control 1 LS 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 1.00 2,000.00$          -                  -$                   

6018 Materials Testing Allowance 1000 UNIT 1.00$ 1,000.00$ 0.00 -$                   (1,000)         (1,000.00)$         

6019 Miscellaneous Work Allowance 2500 UNIT 1.00$ 2,500.00$ -$                   (2,500)         (2,500.00)$         

Summary
Schedule I (Central Ave.) - Base Bid 1,378,324.00$ 1,275,505.55$   (102,818.45)$     

Schedule II (Lincoln Ave. - A) - Base Bid 601,755.00$ 561,628.88$      (40,126.12)$       

Schedule III (Lincoln Ave. - B) 570,843.00$ 531,857.85$      (38,985.15)$       

Schedule IV (Peterson Park Crossing) - Change Order #1 297,347.00$ 288,089.03$      (9,257.97)$         

Schedule V (Veteran's Park) 195,475.00$ 135,234.00$      (60,241.00)$       

Schedule VI (Crestwood) 162,909.00$ 149,352.00$      (13,557.00)$       

Total 3,206,653.00$   2,941,667.31$   (264,985.69)$     

BALANCING CHANGE ORDER ADJUSTMENT 3,206,653.00$   2,941,667.31$   (264,985.69)$     

82

Item c.



March 2023 SVFD Run Report 

 

 

2024-024 #1 Gas Smell 3/1/2024 Fire City 1 hrs

2024-025 #2 Report of Smoke 3/4/2024 Fire City 1 hrs

2024-026 #3 Lift Assist 3/6/2024 Medical City 1 hrs

2024-027 #4 Structure fire 3/7/2024 fire county 7 hrs

2024-028 #5 Accident Assist 3/13/2024 Medical county 1 hrs

2024-029 #6 Gas Smell 3/17/2024 fire County 1 hrs

2024-030 #7 Fire Alarm 3/19/2024 fire City 1 hrs

2024-031 #8 Gas Smell 3/22/2024 fire county 1 hrs

83

Item a.



84

Item a.

Brandon
Text Box
to State for 1% GRT: $2,666.65 to B&B Builders: $263,998.03

Brandon
Text Box
03-29-2024



TO OWNER/CLIENT: PROJECT: APPLICATION NO: 4
City of Sidney
115 2nd St SE
Sidney, Montana 59270

SCH-Remodel 2023
115 2nd St SE
Sidney, Montana 59270

INVOICE NO: SCH-Pay App-004
PERIOD: 03/01/24 - 03/25/24

PROJECT NO: 2023-SCH
FROM CONTRACTOR: VIA ARCHITECT/ENGINEER: CONTRACT DATE: 10/6/2023 
B & B Builders, Inc
108 2nd Street Northeast, Montana
Sidney, Montana 59270

Brandon Janshen (SDI Architects + Design)
 

   
   
   

CONTRACT FOR: Owner    
 

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT
Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract. Continuation
Sheet is attached.
       
1. Original Contract Sum   $1,536,528.00
2. Net change by change orders   $32,353.00
3. Contract Sum to date (Line 1 ± 2)   $1,568,881.00
4. Total completed and stored to date

(Column G on detail sheet)
 

$1,320,250.31
5. Retainage:    
  a. 5.00% of completed work $66,012.52  
  b. 0.00% of stored material $0.00  
  Total retainage

(Line 5a + 5b or total in column I of detail sheet)
 

$66,012.52
6. Total earned less retainage

(Line 4 less Line 5 Total)
 

$1,254,237.79
7. Less previous certificates for payment

(Line 6 from prior certificate)
 

$987,573.11
8. Current payment due:   $266,664.68
9. Balance to finish, including retainage

(Line 3 less Line 6)
 

$314,643.21
 
 

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS
Total changes approved in previous months by Owner/Client: $27,378.24 $(10,386.24)
Total approved this month: $17,589.00 $(2,228.00)

Totals: $44,967.24 $(12,614.24)
Net change by change orders: $32,353.00
 

  The undersigned certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, information and belief, the
Work covered by this Application for Payment has been completed in accordance with the Contract
Documents, that all amounts have been paid by the Contractor for Work which previous Certificates
for payment were issued and payments received from the Owner/Client, and that current payments
shown herein is now due.

CONTRACTOR: B & B Builders, Inc
         
         
By:     ProcoreGeneralContractorSignHere   Date: ProcoreGeneralContractorSignedDate

         
State of:      
County of:      
Subscribed and sworn to before      
me this                                     day of      
Notary Public:      
My commission expires:      
       
 
ARCHITECT'S/ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT
In  accordance  with  the  Contract  Documents,  based  on  the  on-site  observations  and  the  data
comprising this application, the Architect/Engineer certifies to the Owner/Client that to the best of the
Architect's/Engineer's  knowledge,  information  and  belief  that  Work  is  in  accordance  with  the
Contract Documents, and the Contractor is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED.

AMOUNT CERTIFIED: $266,664.68

(Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for. Initial all figures on this
Application and on the Continuation Sheet that are changed to confirm the amount certified.)

ARCHITECT/ENGINEER:      
         
By:     Date:  

This  certificate  is  not  negotiable.  The  amount  certified  is  payable  only  to  the  Contractor  named
herein.  Issuance,  payment  and  acceptance  of  payment  are  without  prejudice  to  the  rights  of  the
Owner/Client or Contractor under this Contract.

 
APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT DOCUMENT SUMMARY SHEET Page 1 of 7
 

 

   

85

Item a.



Document SUMMARY SHEET, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, containing APPLICATION NUMBER: 4
Contractor's signed Certification is attached. APPLICATION DATE: 3/26/2024
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items apply. PERIOD: 03/01/24 - 03/25/24
 
Contract Lines

A  B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. BUDGET CODE DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

1 00-00 01 10-01.O
Overhead.Other Overhead $94,026.34 $57,570.44 $18,806.88 $0.00 $76,377.32 81.23% $17,649.02 $3,818.87

2 00-00 01 20-01.O
Profit.Other Profit $107,030.10 $74,716.21 $19,998.12 $0.00 $94,714.33 88.49% $12,315.77 $4,735.72

3 00-00 01 40-01.O
Bonds.Other Bonds $20,080.99 $20,080.99 $0.00 $0.00 $20,080.99 100.00% $0.00 $1,004.05

4
00-00 01 50-01.O
Professional
Insurance.Other

Professional Insurance $18,316.45 $14,300.00 $4,016.45 $0.00 $18,316.45 100.00% $0.00 $915.82

5 01-01 52 00-01.O
Job Trailer.Other Job Trailer $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $250.00 $0.00 $1,750.00 87.50% $250.00 $87.50

6 01-01 52 19-01.O
Port-a-Pottie.Other Port-a-Pottie $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

7 01-01 53 00-01.O
Temp Fence.Other Temp Fence $10,000.00 $8,062.00 $500.00 $0.00 $8,562.00 85.62% $1,438.00 $428.10

8 01-01 54 00-03.O
Equipment Rental.Other Equipment Rental $8,900.00 $7,000.00 $500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 84.27% $1,400.00 $375.00

9 01-01 54 00-04.O
Fuel.Other Fuel $500.00 $300.00 $100.00 $0.00 $400.00 80.00% $100.00 $20.00

10 01-01 58 00-01.O
Project Sign.Other Project Sign $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $100.00

11 01-01 70 00-01.O
Supervision.Other Supervision $45,000.00 $34,917.49 $3,350.00 $0.00 $38,267.49 85.04% $6,732.51 $1,913.37

12 01-01 74 00-01.O
Cleaning.Other Cleaning $4,600.00 $3,583.07 $300.00 $0.00 $3,883.07 84.41% $716.93 $194.15

13 01-01 74 00-02.O
Garbage.Other Garbage $800.00 $707.49 $92.51 $0.00 $800.00 100.00% $0.00 $40.00

14 02-02 41 00-01.O
Building Demolition.Other Building Demolition $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,500.00

15 03-03 00 00.O
Concrete.Other Concrete $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $450.00

16 03-03 30 00-01.O
Concrete.Other Concrete $7,400.00 $7,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,400.00 100.00% $0.00 $370.00

17 03-03 30 00-02.O
Concrete Labor.Other Concrete Labor $28,100.00 $28,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,100.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,405.00

18 03-03 60 00-01.O
Grout Columns.Other Grout Columns $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $175.00

19 05-05 40 00-03.O
Misc Materials.Other Misc Materials $2,900.00 $1,730.49 $1,169.51 $0.00 $2,900.00 100.00% $0.00 $145.00

20 05-05 40 00-04.O
Misc Labor.Other Misc Labor $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $125.00

21 05-05 50 00-01.O Steel Joists & Fabrication $14,750.00 $14,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,750.00 100.00% $0.00 $737.50

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 2 of 7
 

 

   

86

Item a.



A  B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. BUDGET CODE DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

Steel Joists &
Fabrication.Other

22 05-05 50 00-02.O
Steel Erection.Other Steel Erection $13,875.00 $13,875.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,875.00 100.00% $0.00 $693.75

23 06-06 10 00-01.O
Framing.Other Framing $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,500.00

24 06-06 10 00-02.O
Fasteners.Other Fasteners $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $100.00

25 06-06 10 00-03.O
Misc Materials.Other Misc Materials $5,000.00 $3,926.65 $1,073.35 $0.00 $5,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $250.00

26 06-06 10 00-04.O
Misc Labor.Other Misc Labor $16,000.00 $12,000.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $13,500.00 84.38% $2,500.00 $675.00

27 06-06 10 00-05.O
Framing Labor.Other Framing Labor $43,200.00 $43,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,200.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,160.00

28 06-06 41 00-01.O
Cabinets.Other Cabinets $150,034.00 $0.00 $112,525.00 $0.00 $112,525.00 75.00% $37,509.00 $5,626.25

29 06-06 41 00-02.O
Cabinet Labor.Other Cabinet Labor $37,141.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 67.31% $12,141.00 $1,250.00

30 07-07 21 00-01.O
Batt Insulation.Other Batt Insulation $4,950.00 $4,950.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,950.00 100.00% $0.00 $247.50

31
07-07 21 00-03.O
Spray Foam
Insulation.Other

Spray Foam Insulation $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $150.00

32 07-07 21 00-04.O
Zip Panels.Other Zip Panels $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $125.00

33 07-07 21 00-05.O
Insulation Labor.Other Insulation Labor $5,300.00 $5,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,300.00 100.00% $0.00 $265.00

34
07-07 40 00-01.O
Roofing & Siding
Panels.Other

Roofing & Siding Panels $6,400.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 7.81% $5,900.00 $25.00

35
07-07 40 00-02.O
Roofing & Siding
Labor.Other

Roofing & Siding Labor $8,700.00 $1,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 20.69% $6,900.00 $90.00

36 07-07 60 00-01.O
Flashing & Trim.Other Flashing & Trim $1,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,300.00 $0.00

37
07-07 60 00-02.O
Flashing & Trim
Labor.Other

Flashing & Trim Labor $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,000.00 $0.00

38 07-07 90 00-01.O
Building Caulking.Other Building Caulking $4,000.00 $2,310.89 $0.00 $0.00 $2,310.89 57.77% $1,689.11 $115.54

39
08-08 11 00-01.O
Hollow Metal Doors &
Frames.Other

Hollow Metal Doors & Frames $59,000.00 $59,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $59,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $2,950.00

40
08-08 11 00-02.O
HM Doors & Frames
Labor.Other

HM Doors & Frames Labor $38,000.00 $19,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,100.00 50.26% $18,900.00 $955.00

41 08-08 50 00-01.O
Fiberglass Windows.Other Fiberglass Windows $36,250.00 $36,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,250.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,812.50

42 08-08 50 00-04.O Window Labor $19,750.00 $19,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,750.00 100.00% $0.00 $987.50

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 3 of 7
 

 

   

87

Item a.



A  B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. BUDGET CODE DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

Window Labor.Other

43 09-09 29 00-01.O
Sheetrock.Other Sheetrock $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $675.00

44 09-09 29 00-02.O
Tape & Texture.Other Tape & Texture $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $500.00

45 09-09 29 00-03.O
Sheetrock Labor.Other Sheetrock Labor $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,025.00

46
09-09 29 00-04.O
Tape & Texture
Labor.Other

Tape & Texture Labor $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,000.00

47 09-09 51 00-01.O
Acoustical Ceilings.Other Acoustical Ceilings $19,110.00 $0.00 $19,110.00 $0.00 $19,110.00 100.00% $0.00 $955.50

48
09-09 51 00-02.O
Acoustical Ceiling
Labor.Other

Acoustical Ceiling Labor $12,740.00 $0.00 $12,740.00 $0.00 $12,740.00 100.00% $0.00 $637.00

49 09-09 65 00-01.O
Resilient Flooring.Other Resilient Flooring $45,297.00 $5,000.00 $35,495.00 $0.00 $40,495.00 89.40% $4,802.00 $2,024.75

50 09-09 65 00-02.O
Flooring Labor.Other Flooring Labor $30,198.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 115.90% $(4,802.00) $1,750.00

51 09-09 90 00-01.O
Painting.Other Painting $10,560.00 $10,560.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,560.00 100.00% $0.00 $528.00

52 09-09 90 00-02.O
Painting Labor.Other Painting Labor $15,840.00 $15,840.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,840.00 100.00% $0.00 $792.00

53 10-10 10 00-01.O
Specialties.Other Specialties $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,800.00 100.00% $0.00 $190.00

54 10-10 28 13-01.O
Toilet Accessories.Other Toilet Accessories $5,100.00 $5,068.00 $32.00 $0.00 $5,100.00 100.00% $0.00 $255.00

55 12-12 20 00-01.O
Window Blinds.Other Window Blinds $2,885.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,885.65 $0.00

56
12-12 20 00-02.O
Window Blinds
Labor.Other

Window Blinds Labor $4,328.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,328.47 $0.00

57 22-22 00 00-01.O
Plumbing.Other Plumbing $26,000.00 $26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $1,300.00

58 22-22 00 00-02.O
Plumbing Labor.Other Plumbing Labor $39,000.00 $27,900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,900.00 71.54% $11,100.00 $1,395.00

59
23-23 00 00.O
Heating, Ventilating, and
Air Conditioning.Other

Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning $85,787.00 $75,127.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $81,127.00 94.57% $4,660.00 $4,056.35

60 23-23 00 00-02.O
HVAC Labor.Other HVAC Labor $89,278.00 $81,852.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $83,852.00 93.92% $5,426.00 $4,192.60

61 26-26 00 00-01.O
Electrical.Other Electrical $112,137.50 $26,452.50 $31,985.00 $0.00 $58,437.50 52.11% $53,700.00 $2,921.88

62 26-26 00 00-02.O
Electrical Labor.Other Electrical Labor $71,662.50 $46,300.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $56,300.00 78.56% $15,362.50 $2,815.00

  TOTALS: $1,536,528.00 $1,003,580.22 $307,043.82 $0.00 $1,310,624.04 85.30% $225,903.96 $65,531.20
 

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 4 of 7
 

 

   

88

Item a.



Change Orders
A B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

63 PCCO#001         

63.1 PCO#001         

63.1.1 22-22 00 00-01.O Plumbing.Other 
Delete Shower and Replace w/Mop Sink $(3,861.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $(3,861.00) $0.00

63.1.2 22-22 00 00-01.O Plumbing.Other 
Change Kitchen Sink and Faucet $(320.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $(320.00) $0.00

63.1.3 02-02 41 00-01.O Building Demolition.Other 
Demo 2nd Layer of Tile $900.00 $900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 100.00% $0.00 $45.00

63.1.4 09-09 65 00-02.O Flooring Labor.Other 
Floor Patch @ Tile Demo $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 100.00% $0.00 $135.00

63.1.5 09-09 65 00-01.O Resilient Flooring.Other 
Floor Patch @ Tile Demo $828.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $828.33 $0.00

63.1.6 02-02 41 00-01.O Building Demolition.Other 
Demo Foam, Plaster & Sheetrock $975.00 $975.00 $0.00 $0.00 $975.00 100.00% $0.00 $48.75

63.1.7 06-06 10 00-05.O Framing Labor.Other 
Frame in Window/Fur Out Wall $1,050.00 $1,050.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,050.00 100.00% $0.00 $52.50

63.1.8 09-09 29 00-03.O Sheetrock Labor.Other 
Hang/Mud/Tape Level 5 Rm 127 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 100.00% $0.00 $50.00

63.1.9 09-09 29 00-01.O Sheetrock.Other 
New Sheetrock Rm 127 $120.00 $120.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120.00 100.00% $0.00 $6.00

63.1.10 05-05 50 00-01.O Steel Joists & Fabrication.Other 
Credit for Steel Beam $(566.24) $(566.24) $0.00 $0.00 $(566.24) 100.00% $0.00 $(28.31)

63.1.11 05-05 50 00-02.O Steel Erection.Other 
Credit for Steel Beam $(1,350.00) $(1,350.00) $0.00 $0.00 $(1,350.00) 100.00% $0.00 $(67.50)

63.1.12 08-08 11 00-01.O Hollow Metal Doors & Frames.Other 
Hardware Credit for Entry 101 $(4,289.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $(4,289.00) $0.00

63.1.13 08-08 41 00-01.O Storefront Doors.Other 
Add New Storefront & Sidelite Entry 101 $7,284.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $7,284.00 $0.00

63.1.14 02-02 41 00-01.O Building Demolition.Other 
Demo Existing Door Entry 101 $495.00 $495.00 $0.00 $0.00 $495.00 100.00% $0.00 $24.75

63.1.15 08-08 41 00-02.O Storefront Door Labor.Other 
Install New Storefront Door Entry 101 $2,475.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,475.00 $0.00

63.1.16 07-07 21 00-01.O Batt Insulation.Other 
Replace existing insulation in above clng $349.93 $349.93 $0.00 $0.00 $349.93 100.00% $0.00 $17.50

63.1.17 07-07 21 00-05.O Insulation Labor.Other 
Replace existing insulation above clng $1,425.00 $1,425.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,425.00 100.00% $0.00 $71.25

63.1.18 02-02 41 00-01.O Building Demolition.Other 
Demo Existing Insulation above clng $525.00 $525.00 $0.00 $0.00 $525.00 100.00% $0.00 $26.25

63.1.19 26-26 00 00-01.O Electrical.Other 
Add Light by Vault $260.85 $0.00 $260.85 $0.00 $260.85 100.00% $0.00 $13.04

63.1.20 26-26 00 00-02.O Electrical Labor.Other 
Add Vault Light $170.00 $0.00 $170.00 $0.00 $170.00 100.00% $0.00 $8.50

63.1.21 10-10 10 00-01.O Specialties.Other 
Floor Hatch $1,234.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,234.00 $0.00

63.1.22 05-05 50 00-01.O Steel Joists & Fabrication.Other 
Fall Screen Fabrication $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,500.00 $0.00

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 5 of 7
 

 

   

89

Item a.



A B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

63.1.23 06-06 10 00-04.O Misc Labor.Other 
Install Hatch & Fall Screen $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,000.00 $0.00

63.1.24 00-00 01 10-01.O Overhead.Other 
Change Order 001 Overhead $1,266.13 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600.00 47.39% $666.13 $30.00

63.1.25 00-00 01 20-01.O Profit.Other 
Change Order 001 Profit $1,548.27 $700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700.00 45.21% $848.27 $35.00

63.1.26 00-00 01 40-01.O Bonds.Other 
Change Order 001 Bond $271.73 $271.73 $0.00 $0.00 $271.73 100.00% $0.00 $13.59

64 PCCO#002         

64.1 PCO#002         

64.1.1 22-22 00 00-01.O Plumbing.Other 
RFP-004-Materials $4,873.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,873.27 $0.00

64.1.2 22-22 00 00-02.O Plumbing Labor.Other 
RFP-004-Labor $4,760.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,760.70 $0.00

64.1.3 22-22 00 00-01.O Plumbing.Other 
RFP-004-Subcontractor - Insulating $1,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,300.00 $0.00

64.1.4 26-26 00 00-01.O Electrical.Other 
RFP-011-Materials $236.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $236.31 $0.00

64.1.5 26-26 00 00-02.O Electrical Labor.Other 
RFP-011-Labor $510.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $510.00 $0.00

64.1.6 12-12 20 00-01.O Window Blinds.Other 
RFP-012-Materials $(1,798.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $(1,798.00) $0.00

64.1.7 12-12 20 00-02.O Window Blinds Labor.Other 
RFP-012-Labor $(430.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $(430.00) $0.00

64.1.8 26-26 00 00-01.O Electrical.Other 
RFP-013-Material $1,087.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,087.65 $0.00

64.1.9 26-26 00 00-02.O Electrical Labor.Other 
RFO-013-Labor $212.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $212.50 $0.00

64.1.10 08-08 11 00-01.O Hollow Metal Doors & Frames.Other 
RFP-014-Material $50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $50.00 $0.00

64.1.11 08-08 11 00-02.O HM Doors & Frames Labor.Other 
RFP-014-Labor $525.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $525.00 $0.00

64.1.12 08-08 11 00-01.O Hollow Metal Doors & Frames.Other 
RFP-014-Material $1,470.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,470.00 $0.00

64.1.13 00-00 01 10-01.O Overhead.Other 
CO-002 $1,051.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,051.76 $0.00

64.1.14 00-00 01 20-01.O Profit.Other 
CO-002 $1,286.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,286.18 $0.00

64.1.15 00-00 01 40-01.O Bonds.Other 
CO-002 $225.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $225.63 $0.00

 TOTALS: $32,353.00 $9,195.42 $430.85 $0.00 $9,626.27 29.75% $22,726.73 $481.32
 

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 6 of 7
 

 

   

90

Item a.



Grand Totals
A B C D E F G H I

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED

VALUE

WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS
PRESENTLY

STORED
(NOT IN  D OR E)

TOTAL
COMPLETED

AND STORED TO
DATE

(D + E + F)

%
(G / C)

BALANCE TO
FINISH
(C - G)

RETAINAGEFROM PREVIOUS
APPLICATION

(D + E)
THIS PERIOD

 GRAND TOTALS: $1,568,881.00 $1,012,775.64 $307,474.67 $0.00 $1,320,250.31 84.15% $248,630.69 $66,012.52

 
CONTINUATION SHEET DOCUMENT DETAIL SHEET Page 7 of 7
 

 

   

91

Item a.



92

Item a.



93

Item a.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#017 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  03-10-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 06 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Provide line item breakdowns (+/-) of millwork adjustments. 
 

REASON: 
 
Millwork package was adjusted and refined to better accommodate existing conditions, unknowns, etc. – 
final reconciliation to assure everyone is properly compensated. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $5,891.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: 21 days     

94

Item b.



Quote #: 2308-02R1

SMC Job #: 23-08

To: Project:

RE:

Attn:

Email:

Quoted By: Accepted By:

Date: Date:

Quote #: 2308-02R1

Phone: (406)-482-2810

Lee Harris- Estimator

April 3, 2024

Fax: (406)-482-2858

Sidney Millwork Company

Total $5,032.50

Lee Harris

This quote will expire in 30 days unless extended in writing by

OH & P 10% 457.50$  

Subtotal 4,575.00$  

4) Add Trim at Beam Wrap

Material 305.00$  

Install Labor 150.00$  

Shop Labor/Exp 540.00$  

CAD/ENG 100.00$  

3) Revise Casework at Main Office

Material 980.00$  

2) Revise Height of Wainscot and wrap columns full height  @ Council Chambers

Material $920.00

Install Labor $1,330.00

1) Revise Trims at Entry

Material $250.00

108 2nd Street NE Changes to Shop Drawings

Sidney, MT 59270 Gentrie Lemerond

406.482.9023

QUOTE DESCRIPTION PRICE

Sidney Millwork Co.
PO Box 1125 / 1166 Cambrian Lane

    QUOTATION Sidney, MT  59270

B&B Builders Sidney City Hall Remodel 2023

$5,032.50 x 7% OH = $5,384.78 x 8% Profit = $5,815.56 x 1.3% Bond = $5,891.16

95

Item b.



96

Item b.



97

Item b.



04-11-2024

98

Item c.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#015 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  02-14-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 02,26 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Per the attached drawing revisions, provide an associated cost to add the exterior lighting. 
 

REASON: 
 
Owner request. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $25,057.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: 8 week lead time on fixtures + 2 weeks to install    

99

Item c.



simplicity

SC
ED

# 2
02

2.4
1.0

05
5 O

FF
IC

IA
L S

TA
MP

ED
 R

EC
OR

D 
DR

AW
IN

GS
 A

RE
 LO

CA
TE

D 
AT

 T
HE

 B
US

IN
ES

S 
OF

FIC
E 

OF
 T

HE
 R

EG
IS

TE
RE

D 
PR

OF
ES

SI
ON

 W
HO

 S
EA

LE
D 

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G.
  D

EV
IA

TIO
NS

 O
R 

MO
DI

FI
CA

TI
ON

S 
FR

OM
 T

HE
 O

FF
IC

IA
L S

EA
LE

D 
SE

T W
/O

 T
HE

 B
EN

EF
IT

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
OF

ES
SI

ON
AL

 O
F 

RE
CO

RD
 IS

 A
T 

TH
E 

RI
SK

 O
F T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
OR

 O
W

NE
R.

  T
HE

SE
 D

RA
W

IN
GS

 A
RE

 C
OP

YR
IG

HT
 P

RO
TE

CT
ED

 B
Y 

SI
MP

LIC
IT

Y 
CE

D,
 LL

C.

2024

sd
i
ar

ch
it
ec

ts
+
d
es

ig
n

9
0

9
 m

a
in

 s
tr

e
e
t

m
ile

s 
ci

ty
, m

o
nt

a
na

 5
9

3
0

1

4
0

6
 . 

2
3

4
 . 

0
7

7
7

2023/09/08 ADD#1
2023/12/13 RFP004
2024/02/14 EXT LITES

CI
TY

 H
AL

L 
RE

M
O
DE

L
Cit

y o
f S

idn
ey

11
5 2

nd
 St

ree
t S

E, 
Sid

ne
y M

T  
59

27
0

E1.0

ELEC.
REQRMNT'S

100

Item c.

Brandon
Callout
arch bronze



simplicity

SC
ED

# 2
02

2.4
1.0

05
5 O

FF
IC

IA
L S

TA
MP

ED
 R

EC
OR

D 
DR

AW
IN

GS
 A

RE
 LO

CA
TE

D 
AT

 T
HE

 B
US

IN
ES

S 
OF

FIC
E 

OF
 T

HE
 R

EG
IS

TE
RE

D 
PR

OF
ES

SI
ON

 W
HO

 S
EA

LE
D 

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G.
  D

EV
IA

TIO
NS

 O
R 

MO
DI

FI
CA

TI
ON

S 
FR

OM
 T

HE
 O

FF
IC

IA
L S

EA
LE

D 
SE

T W
/O

 T
HE

 B
EN

EF
IT

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
OF

ES
SI

ON
AL

 O
F 

RE
CO

RD
 IS

 A
T 

TH
E 

RI
SK

 O
F T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
OR

 O
W

NE
R.

  T
HE

SE
 D

RA
W

IN
GS

 A
RE

 C
OP

YR
IG

HT
 P

RO
TE

CT
ED

 B
Y 

SI
MP

LIC
IT

Y 
CE

D,
 LL

C.

2024

sd
i
ar

ch
it
ec

ts
+
d
es

ig
n

9
0

9
 m

a
in

 s
tr

e
e
t

m
ile

s 
ci

ty
, m

o
nt

a
na

 5
9

3
0

1

4
0

6
 . 

2
3

4
 . 

0
7

7
7

2023/09/08 ADD#1
2023/12/13 RFP004
2024/02/14 EXT LITES

CI
TY

 H
AL

L 
RE

M
O
DE

L
Cit

y o
f S

idn
ey

11
5 2

nd
 St

ree
t S

E, 
Sid

ne
y M

T  
59

27
0

2 - Basement Elec. Plan -

E1.1

LIGHTING
PLAN

1 - Lighting Plan -

101

Item c.

Brandon
Callout
install leftover wall pack here



21,405.00 x 7% OH = 22,903.35 x 8% Profit = 24,735.62 x 1.3% Bond = 25,057.18

102

Item c.



103

Item c.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#016 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  02-28-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 04 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Per the attached specification, provide an associated cost to clean and seal all exterior brick surfaces 
around the building. As part of this effort, removal or grinding of defunct anchors (e.g. old Fire Hall sign) 
should be completed and holes should be filled with best-matching sealant. 
 

REASON: 
 
Owner request. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $10,184.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: Work is weather-dependent and will be completed as temperatures allow.  
  

104

Item c.



 
04 01 20 - Cleaning & Sealing of Brick Masonry 

1 

04 01 20 - Cleaning & Sealing of Brick Masonry 1 
 2 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:  Per DIVISION 04 – MASONRY 3 
 4 
SCOPE:  Clean all dirt, scale, lichen, iron and mineral deposit buildup on exterior brick.  The most soiled 5 
areas to be cleaned are approximately the lower 6’ where sprinklers left staining, however the entire 6 
building is to be cleaned prior to application of sealant and moisture proofing. 7 
 8 
MATERIALS: 9 

A. Cleaning Compound:  Equal to PROSOCO, INC. Sure Klean Restoration Cleaner.  Acid 10 
compound 100% soluble in water and noninjurious to hands. 11 

B. Masonry Sealing Compound: Equal to EUCLID Baracade Silane 40 IPA, product is alcohol and 12 
mineral spirits based. 13 

 14 
EXECUTION: 15 

A. Cleaning Compound: 16 
a. Protection:  Mask, shield or otherwise protect adjacent surfaces and finishes, including 17 

windows, doors and other openings from any contact with cleaning compound. 18 
b. Application:  Follow manufacturer’s Product Data instructions for application and 19 

equipment.  Rinse with 400+ psi pressure sprayer and clean water as recommended. 20 
c. Clean-up:  Rinse and wash-down all residue from this operation leaving all affected areas 21 

in as good or better condition than before the work started. 22 
B. Masonry Sealer: 23 

a. Protection:  In general, masking of metal or glass surfaces is not required.  Avoid 24 
applying to surfaces at foundation to be coated with exterior acrylic finish systems. 25 

b. Application:  Apply one coat applied at the rate of 100 s.f./gal with low pressure sprayer 26 
or 1” lambswool roller per manufacturer's printed instructions. 27 

 28 
END OF SECTION 29 

105

Item c.



C & J Painting Inc
35260 cr 129
Sidney MT 59270
406-480-3622

B & B Builders
City Hall

B i d

Quote # 0000272

Quote Date 03/12/2024

Item Description Unit Price Quantity Amount

Service Clean and Seal Brick
Materials Sealer, Cleaner, masking supplies

1.00 2500.00 2,500.00

Service Lift Rental 1.00 1000.00 1,000.00

Service Labor Cleaning brick, Patching holes, Sealing 1.00 4450.00 4,450.00

Subtotal 7,950.00

Total 7,950.00

Amount Paid 0.00

Quote $7,950.00

B&B Builders = 10MH for caulking and general clean up  10MH x 75/Hour = $750.00

7,950.00 + 750 = 8,700.00 x 7% OH= 9,309.00 x 8% Pr = 10,053.72 x 1.3% Bond = $10,184.42

106

Item c.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#018 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  03-13-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 05,09 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Per the attached drawings, modify existing guard and add handrail; paint all steel assemblies for final. 
Drawings are schematic, so please field verify dimensions as needed. 
 

REASON: 
 
Owner request. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $7,012.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: 5 days     

107

Item c.



108

Item c.

Brandon
Rectangle

Brandon
Rectangle



109

Item c.

Brandon
Callout
anchor to concrete @ each tread

Brandon
Rectangle

Brandon
Callout
details revised on site per sketches below; will be updated for as-builts and record drawings as needed



5,990.00 M&L (see below) x 7% OH =6,409.30 x 8% Profit = 6,922.04 x 1.3% Bond = 7,012.03 

110

Item c.



111

Item c.



112

Item c.



113

Item c.



Kunda Welding Inc.
PO BOX
SIDNEY, MT  59270 US
kundawelding@yahoo.com

Estimate

ADDRESS

B & B BUILDERS
108 2nd ST NE
Mt
Sidney, MT  59270

SHIP TO

B & B BUILDERS
108 2nd ST NE
Mt
Sidney, MT  59270

ESTIMATE # DATE

1003 03/28/2024

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

WELDER fab and install guardrail extension 
and handrails

24 110.00 2,640.00

WELDER'S HELPER Helped welder grind, fit, move pipe, 
etc.

24 50.00 1,200.00

MATERIAL 6.50 100.00 650.00

TOTAL $4,490.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

114

Item c.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#019 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  03-13-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 06,10 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Per the attached drawings, provide exterior signage for the project. 
Provide treated 2x blocking behind panels as needed for w. side sign. 
 

REASON: 
 
Owner request. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $5,062.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: Depends on lead time of letters once approved.    

115

Item c.



116

Item c.



 

 

 

 

March 18, 2024 

 

 

PRICE QUOTATION 

 

 

TO: GENTRIE LEMEROND 

B & B BUILDERS 

108 2ND Street N.E. 

Sidney, MT  59270 

 

 

RE: City Hall - Remodel 

 Sidney, MT 

 

 

Gentrie,  

Per RFP #019 we have priced the following items. 

 
 

EXTERIOR SIGNS as manufactured by Gemini:  We are quoting per the quantities, 

models & sizes below.  Any changes will require revised pricing. 

 

   8 – Letters, 16” h. cast aluminum, dark bronze anodized 

 12 – Letters, 8” h. cast aluminum, dark bronze anodized                           $ 2,899.00 
 

 

Terms: All items are quoted F.O.B. factory, full freight allowed to jobsite. Installation, 

blocking,  or field verification are not included unless specifically noted. 
 

Please consider the above prices valid for thirty (30) days only.   
 

Where credit has been established, net 30 days, 1-½% interest will be charged per 

month on any balance after 30 days.  Interest, re-billing fees, attorney fees, and 

any other costs associated to the collection of past due accounts will be added. 
 

Prices do not include state, federal taxes or TERO taxes unless noted.      
 

Sincerely, 

DuPREE BUILDING SPECIALTIES of MT 

 
Carl W. Rose 
 

carl@dupreebldgspec.com 
 

 

ACCEPTED:  _________________________________________     DATE:  __________________ 

Install = 18MH x 75/HR = 1,350.00 + 75 Misc Mat. + 2,899.00 = 4,324.00 x 7% OH = 4,626.68 x 8% Profit = 4996.81 x 1.3% Bond = 5,061.77

117

Item c.

mailto:carl@dupreebldgspec.com


04-11-2024

118

Item d.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#017 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  03-10-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 06 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Provide line item breakdowns (+/-) of millwork adjustments. 
 

REASON: 
 
Millwork package was adjusted and refined to better accommodate existing conditions, unknowns, etc. – 
final reconciliation to assure everyone is properly compensated. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $5,891.00 
CALENDAR DAYS: 21 days     

119

Item d.



Quote #: 2308-02R1

SMC Job #: 23-08

To: Project:

RE:

Attn:

Email:

Quoted By: Accepted By:

Date: Date:

Quote #: 2308-02R1

Phone: (406)-482-2810

Lee Harris- Estimator

April 3, 2024

Fax: (406)-482-2858

Sidney Millwork Company

Total $5,032.50

Lee Harris

This quote will expire in 30 days unless extended in writing by

OH & P 10% 457.50$  

Subtotal 4,575.00$  

4) Add Trim at Beam Wrap

Material 305.00$  

Install Labor 150.00$  

Shop Labor/Exp 540.00$  

CAD/ENG 100.00$  

3) Revise Casework at Main Office

Material 980.00$  

2) Revise Height of Wainscot and wrap columns full height  @ Council Chambers

Material $920.00

Install Labor $1,330.00

1) Revise Trims at Entry

Material $250.00

108 2nd Street NE Changes to Shop Drawings

Sidney, MT 59270 Gentrie Lemerond

406.482.9023

QUOTE DESCRIPTION PRICE

Sidney Millwork Co.
PO Box 1125 / 1166 Cambrian Lane

    QUOTATION Sidney, MT  59270

B&B Builders Sidney City Hall Remodel 2023

$5,032.50 x 7% OH = $5,384.78 x 8% Profit = $5,815.56 x 1.3% Bond = $5,891.16

120

Item d.



sdi architects + design         909 main street  |  miles city, mt 59301 
www.sdiarch.com      406 . 234 . 0777  |  bjanshen@sdiarch.com  
 
 
 

If responding to an RFP or CCD, please include any total amounts for associated changes in Contract Time 
and/or Contract Sum.  Contractor is required to provide supplementary breakdowns for justifications of these 
changes with their response. 

SDI #2022007 

#020 
☐ RFI (Request for Information) 
☒ RFP (Request for Proposal) 
☐ CCD (Construction Change Directive) 
 
 

SIDNEY CITY HALL REMODEL 
Sidney, Montana 

 
 
TO: B&B BUILDERS, INC. 

ATTN: Gentrie Lemerond 
108 2nd Street NE 
Sidney, MT 59270 

FROM:  SDI ARCHITECTS + DESIGN 
   ATTN: Brandon Janshen, AIA 
   909 Main Street 
   Miles City, MT 59301

 
 
In order to expedite the Work and avoid or minimize delays in the Work, please respond to the following within 
(7) calendar days after the send date listed below. 
 
SENT:  03-30-2024 DIVISION(S) AFFECTED: 09 
 

 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST: 
 
Provide cost to change all ‘Navy Blue’ rubber base on dark blue cabinets to ‘Indigo’ as originally specified. 
 

REASON: 
 
Original color selection was changed in anticipation of going with lighter cabinets based on initial 
feedback; the darker cabinets were eventually selected and we didn’t think to revise the floor base 
selection before it was ordered/installed. Joint request for a better aesthetic for final. 
 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE: 
 
DEBIT: $489.50 
CALENDAR DAYS: 15 days   

121

Item d.



Cal's $425.00 x 7% OH = 454.75 x 8% Profit = 491.13 x 1.5% Bond = 498.50

122

Item d.

Brandon
Rectangle

Brandon
Rectangle



123

Item e.



124

Item e.



125

Item e.



126

Item e.



127

Item e.



128

Item e.



129

Item e.



130

Item e.



131

Item e.



132

Item e.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 1 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
JV   1556  3/24                                                                             03/11/24                          bree
 To move money from the mowing fund to the nuiscance (oil and gas fund)
             1   2584      430200      300  Nuiscance Properties- Mow                                               11,638.50
             2   2584      101000           Nuiscance Properties-                                   11,638.50
             3   2890      101000           Nuiscance Properties                                                    11,638.50
             4   2890      431100      300  Nuiscance Properties                                    11,638.50
PR 240300  3/24                                                                             03/28/24                          jess
             1   1000      101000           Employer Contributions                                                  10,982.76
             2   1000      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                    106,746.47
             3   1000      410130      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      1,375.00
             4   1000      410130      142  Employer Contributions                                       8.03
             5   1000      410130      143  Employer Contributions                                     105.21
             6   1000      410210      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      2,050.00
             7   1000      410210      142  Employer Contributions                                      11.93
             8   1000      410210      143  Employer Contributions                                     134.00
             9   1000      410540      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      2,008.45
            10   1000      410540      141  Employer Contributions                                       3.03
            11   1000      410540      142  Employer Contributions                                      11.62
            12   1000      410540      143  Employer Contributions                                     146.66
            13   1000      410550      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      2,008.45
            14   1000      410550      141  Employer Contributions                                       3.01
            15   1000      410550      142  Employer Contributions                                      11.70
            16   1000      410550      143  Employer Contributions                                     146.69
            17   1000      420100      100  Payroll Expenditure                                     81,908.48
            18   1000      420100      141  Employer Contributions                                     122.87
            19   1000      420100      142  Employer Contributions                                   2,263.35
            20   1000      420100      143  Employer Contributions                                   6,118.47
            21   1000      420180      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      1,683.25
            22   1000      420180      141  Employer Contributions                                       2.52
            23   1000      420180      142  Employer Contributions                                       9.79
            24   1000      420180      143  Employer Contributions                                     119.52
            25   1000      420400      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      3,232.04
            26   1000      420400      141  Employer Contributions                                       4.85
            27   1000      420400      142  Employer Contributions                                     232.65
            28   1000      420400      143  Employer Contributions                                     225.23
            29   1000      420531      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      4,915.28
            30   1000      420531      141  Employer Contributions                                       7.38
            31   1000      420531      142  Employer Contributions                                      28.61
            32   1000      420531      143  Employer Contributions                                     344.75
            33   1000      460430      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      7,565.52
            34   1000      460430      141  Employer Contributions                                      11.36
            35   1000      460430      142  Employer Contributions                                     359.20
            36   1000      460430      143  Employer Contributions                                     550.33
            37   2370      101000           Employer Contributions                                                  12,939.47
            38   2370      410130      144  Employer Contributions                                      45.36
            39   2370      410540      144  Employer Contributions                                     182.14
            40   2370      410550      144  Employer Contributions                                     182.17
            41   2370      420100      144  Employer Contributions                                  10,951.99
            42   2370      420180      144  Employer Contributions                                     152.67
            43   2370      420400      144  Employer Contributions                                     293.14

133

Item f.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 2 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
            44   2370      420531      144  Employer Contributions                                     445.82
            45   2370      460430      144  Employer Contributions                                     686.18
            46   2371      101000           Employer Contributions                                                  20,698.81
            47   2371      410130      146  Employer Contributions                                       7.00
            48   2371      410210      146  Employer Contributions                                   1,222.43
            49   2371      410540      146  Employer Contributions                                     540.60
            50   2371      410550      146  Employer Contributions                                     537.12
            51   2371      420100      146  Employer Contributions                                  11,706.23
            52   2371      420180      146  Employer Contributions                                     958.22
            53   2371      420400      146  Employer Contributions                                     974.88
            54   2371      420531      146  Employer Contributions                                   1,933.11
            55   2371      430200      146  Employer Contributions                                       3.51
            56   2371      460430      146  Employer Contributions                                   2,815.71
            57   2565      101000           Employer Contributions                                                   6,308.57
            58   2565      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                     14,187.66
            59   2565      430200      100  Payroll Expenditure                                     14,187.66
            60   2565      430200      141  Employer Contributions                                      21.27
            61   2565      430200      142  Employer Contributions                                     668.86
            62   2565      430200      143  Employer Contributions                                   1,049.00
            63   2565      430200      144  Employer Contributions                                   1,286.85
            64   2565      430200      146  Employer Contributions                                   3,282.59
            65   2566      101000           Employer Contributions                                                   2,407.77
            66   2566      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                      4,935.26
            67   2566      430251      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      4,935.26
            68   2566      430251      141  Employer Contributions                                       7.41
            69   2566      430251      142  Employer Contributions                                     232.61
            70   2566      430251      143  Employer Contributions                                     362.42
            71   2566      430251      144  Employer Contributions                                     447.60
            72   2566      430251      146  Employer Contributions                                   1,357.73
            73   5210      101000           Employer Contributions                                                   9,650.42
            74   5210      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                     19,587.38
            75   5210      430500      100  Payroll Expenditure                                     19,587.38
            76   5210      430500      141  Employer Contributions                                      29.37
            77   5210      430500      142  Employer Contributions                                     737.62
            78   5210      430500      143  Employer Contributions                                   1,432.92
            79   5210      430500      144  Employer Contributions                                   1,776.58
            80   5210      430500      146  Employer Contributions                                   5,673.93
            81   5310      101000           Employer Contributions                                                   8,643.12
            82   5310      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                     20,375.87
            83   5310      430600      100  Payroll Expenditure                                     20,375.87
            84   5310      430600      141  Employer Contributions                                      30.58
            85   5310      430600      142  Employer Contributions                                     630.85
            86   5310      430600      143  Employer Contributions                                   1,503.35
            87   5310      430600      144  Employer Contributions                                   1,848.10
            88   5310      430600      146  Employer Contributions                                   4,630.24
            89   5410      101000           Employer Contributions                                                  12,500.45
            90   5410      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                     27,939.52
            91   5410      430830      100  Payroll Expenditure                                     27,939.52
            92   5410      430830      141  Employer Contributions                                      41.91
            93   5410      430830      142  Employer Contributions                                   1,237.32

134

Item f.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 3 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
            94   5410      430830      143  Employer Contributions                                   2,060.47
            95   5410      430830      144  Employer Contributions                                   2,534.12
            96   5410      430830      146  Employer Contributions                                   6,626.63
            97   5710      101000           Employer Contributions                                                   2,619.41
            98   5710      101000           Payroll Expenditure                                                      6,467.31
            99   5710      430252      100  Payroll Expenditure                                      6,467.31
           100   5710      430252      141  Employer Contributions                                       9.68
           101   5710      430252      142  Employer Contributions                                     226.83
           102   5710      430252      143  Employer Contributions                                     477.21
           103   5710      430252      144  Employer Contributions                                     586.59
           104   5710      430252      146  Employer Contributions                                   1,319.10
           105   7910      101000           Direct Deposit Clearing                                                128,273.38
           106   7910      101000           Electronic Check                                                        83,166.07
           107   7910      101000           Employee Checks                                        200,239.47
           108   7910      101000           Employer Contributions                                  86,750.78
           109   7910      201000           Check for tax/benefit plan                                              78,065.77
           110   7910      201000           Employee Checks                                                          9,589.06
           111   7910      212200           Electronic Check                                        17,163.94
           112   7910      212200           Employee Deduction                                                       6,598.69
           113   7910      212200           Employer Contributions                                                  10,565.25
           114   7910      212501           Electronic Check                                        29,552.46
           115   7910      212501           Employee Deduction                                                      14,776.23
           116   7910      212501           Employer Contributions                                                  14,776.23
           117   7910      212502           Electronic Check                                        20,308.00
           118   7910      212502           Employee Deduction                                                       9,453.94
           119   7910      212502           Employer Contributions                                                  10,854.06
           120   7910      212503           Electronic Check                                           854.29
           121   7910      212503           Employer Contributions                                                     295.24
           122   7910      212504           Check for tax/benefit plan                              18,948.27
           123   7910      212504           Employer Contributions                                                   6,670.97
           124   7910      212505           Electronic Check                                        14,703.43
           125   7910      212505           Employee Deduction                                                      14,703.43
           126   7910      212506           Check for tax/benefit plan                               5,367.00
           127   7910      212506           Employee Deduction                                                       5,367.00
           128   7910      212510           Check for tax/benefit plan                              53,750.50
           129   7910      212510           Electronic Check                                           583.95
           130   7910      212510           Employee Deduction                                                      11,477.74
           131   7910      212510           Employer Contributions                                                  43,589.03
UB   2555  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      122000           Billing - UB                                           133,068.71
             2   5210      313021           Billing - UB                                                               708.97
             3   5210      343021           Billing - UB                                                           132,359.74
             4   5310      122000           Billing - UB                                           148,317.55
             5   5310      343031           Billing - UB                                                           148,317.55
UB   2556  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Receipts - ACH | UB                                     28,407.62
             2   5210      122000           Receipts - ACH | UB                                                     28,407.62
             3   5310      101000           Receipts - ACH | UB                                     30,472.92
             4   5310      122000           Receipts - ACH | UB                                                     30,472.92

135

Item f.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 4 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
UB   2557  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       297.68
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       297.68
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       172.92
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       172.92
UB   2558  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,237.62
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,237.62
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,368.57
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,368.57
UB   2559  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       448.40
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       448.40
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       442.53
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       442.53
UB   2560  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,790.78
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,790.78
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,860.76
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,860.76
UB   2561  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     2,137.34
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     2,137.34
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,655.14
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,655.14
UB   2562  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       709.43
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       709.43
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       796.48
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       796.48
UB   2563  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     1,976.23
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     1,976.23
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                     2,119.75
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                     2,119.75
UB   2564  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       349.31
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       349.31
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       366.63
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       366.63
UB   2565  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       338.40
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       338.40
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       549.60
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       549.60
UB   2566  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       318.90
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       318.90
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       365.81
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       365.81

136

Item f.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 5 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
UB   2567  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       662.22
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       662.22
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       828.06
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       828.06
UB   2568  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                        92.80
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                        92.80
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       100.05
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       100.05
UB   2569  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       148.08
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       148.08
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       177.88
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       177.88
UB   2570  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       486.85
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       486.85
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       548.44
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       548.44
UB   2571  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       653.02
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       653.02
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       616.99
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       616.99
UB   2572  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       543.33
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       543.33
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       674.66
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       674.66
UB   2573  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       191.11
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       191.11
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       209.44
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       209.44
UB   2574  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       116.41
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       116.41
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                       112.20
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                       112.20
UB   2575  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                        88.45
             2   5210      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                        88.45
             3   5310      101000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                        84.72
             4   5310      122000           Batch Payment ONLINE                                                        84.72
UB   2576  3/24                                                                 TRANSFER    04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      122000           Adj-UB Auto Distribute                                   3,295.88
             2   5210      101000           Adj-UB Auto Distribute                                                   3,295.88
             3   5310      101000           Adj-UB Auto Distribute                                   3,295.88
             4   5310      122000           Adj-UB Auto Distribute                                                   3,295.88

137

Item f.



04/11/24                                                   CITY OF SIDNEY                                       Page: 6 of 6
13:38:48                                              Journal Voucher Details                              Report ID: L100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/24
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                                    Description                                     Debit            Credit User ID/
Doc #     Line # Fund Org  Account  Object         Fund Account                  Type        Date   Amount           Amount   Proj
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
UB   2577  3/24                                                                             04/01/24                          UB
             1   5210      122000           Adjustment - UB                                            627.10
             2   5210      343021           Adjustment - UB                                                            627.10
             3   5310      122000           Adjustment - UB                                            225.96
             4   5310      343031           Adjustment - UB                                                            225.96

                                                                                  Grand Total    1,131,837.95    1,131,837.95

138

Item f.



139

Item g.



140

Item g.



141

Item g.



142

Item g.



143

Item g.



144

Item g.



145

Item g.



146

Item g.



147

Item a.



148

Item a.



149

Item a.



150

Item a.



151

Item a.



152

Item a.



City Council Meeting 4-15-2024

2024-1 ON HOLD

2024-3 ON HOLD

2024-26 ON HOLD

2024-33 ON HOLD

2024-34 ON HOLD

2024-46 ON HOLD

2024-58 ON HOLD

2024-59 ON HOLD

2024-60 Byer Rental 111 East Main Remodel L1-2, B14, Original

2024-61 Christensen 215 3rd St NW Fence L1, B2, Augustus Vaux

2024-62 Lawrence 423 2nd Ave SE Demolition L6, B27, Original

RC2024-10 ON HOLD

RC2024-11 ON HOLD

RC2024-12 ON HOLD

153

Item b.


	Top
	Item a.	April 1st, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
	April 1st, 2024 Regular Meeting

	Item b.	April 10th, 2024 Street and Alley Committee Meeting Minutes
	S&A 4-10-24

	Item a.	Drug Task Force MOU (Tabled at 4-1-24 Council Meeting)
	MOU FY25
	Drug Task Force Office MOU FY23024

	Item a.	TBID Grant to Svarre Pool and Day Passes for Hotels
	TBID Grant and Pool Pass Proposal 2024

	Item b.	Aguilar Variance Request
	Aguilar Variance 4-10-24 Minutes
	Aguilar Variance Application March 2024

	Item a.	Anderson Subdivision Vendor Invoice for $6,025.03
	Sidney Anderson Storm_ 2024 Q1 Vendor Invoice
	Sidney Anderson Storm_2024 Q1 Budget Invoices
	Sidney Anderson Storm_2024 Q1 Progress Report

	Item b.	Phase III Water Project Draw #6C for $62,067.35
	Pay App 07_SIDPH3_20240412_ToCOS

	Item c.	Phase III Water Project Change Order #3 for -$264,958.69 (balancing)
	CO#3_SIDPH3_20240412_ToCOS

	Item a.	March 2024 Fire Run Report
	March 2023 SVFD Run Report

	Item a.	SCHR Pay Application #04 for $266,664.68
	SCH Remodel Pay Application #04
	SCHR Budget Tracking 4-12-24

	Item b.	SCHR RFP #17-Millwork Reconciliation for $5,891.00 and RFP #20 Rubber Base for $489.50
	RFP-017_Millwork Reconciliation_RESPONSE ON 04-03-2024
	SCHR RFP 20-Rubber Base

	Item c.	SCHR Change Order 3 for $47,315.00 (RFP's 15, 16, 18 & 19)
	CO-03-G701-2017 - For Owner Signature

	Item d.	SCHR Change Order 4 for $6,380.50 (RFP's 17 & 20)
	CO-04-G701-2017 - For Owner Signature

	Item e.	March 22024 Treasurer's Report
	March 2024 Treasurer's Report

	Item f.	March 22024 JV Report
	March 2024 JV Report

	Item g.	March 2024 Water/Sewer Bank Transfer of $115,518.94
	March 2024 Water-Sewer Bank Transfer

	Item a.	Claims to be approved (Edit Me)
	April 2024 Claims

	Item b.	Building Permits to be approved
	BP Spreadsheet 4-15-24

	Bottom

